Public Document Pack

Cabinet
Date:

Tuesday, 19th October, 2021

Time:

7.00 pm

Venue:

Council Chamber - Council Offices, London Road, Saffron Walden,
CB11 4ER

Broadcast: https://uttlesford.moderngov.co.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=136&MId=5734
Leader and
Chair:

Councillor J Lodge

Members:

Councillors A Armstrong, C Day, J Evans, R Freeman,
N Hargreaves, P Lees, L Pepper and N Reeve

Other
Attendees:

Councillors M Caton (Liberal Democrat Party Group Leader), C
Criscione (Conservative Party Group Leader), N Gregory (Chair of
Scrutiny Committee), B Light (Green Party Group Leader), E Oliver
(Chair of Governance, Audit and Performance Committee) and R
Pavitt (Uttlesford Independent Party Group Leader)

Public Speaking
At the start of the meeting there will be an opportunity of up to 15 minutes for
members of the public to ask questions and make statements subject to having
given notice by 12 noon two working days before the meeting. Please register your
intention to speak at this meeting by writing to committee@uttlesford.gov.uk
Public speakers will be offered the opportunity for an officer to read out their
questions or statement at the meeting, and encouraged to attend the meeting via
Zoom to readout their questions or statement themselves. For further information,
please see overleaf. Those who would like to watch the meeting live can do so
virtually here. The broadcast will be made available as soon as the meeting begins.

AGENDA
PART 1
Open to Public and Press
1

Apologies for Absence and Declarations of Interest
To receive any apologies for absence and declarations of interest.

2

Minutes of the Previous Meeting
To consider the minutes of the meeting held on 2nd September
2021.

3

Questions or Statements from Non-Executive Members of the
Council (standing item)
To receive questions or statements from non-executive members on
matters included on the agenda.

4

Matters Referred to the Executive by the Scrutiny Committee
or by the Council (standing item)
To consider matters referred to the Executive for reconsideration in
accordance with the provisions of the Overview and Scrutiny
Procedure Rules or the Budget and Policy Framework Rules.

5

Consideration of reports from overview and scrutiny
committees (standing item)
To consider any reports from Scrutiny Committee.

6

Report of Delegated Decisions taken by Cabinet Members
(standing item)
To receive for information any delegated decisions taken by Cabinet
Members since the previous Cabinet meeting.


Designation of Takeley Neighbourhood Plan Area –
published on 29 September 2021.

5 - 12

7

Report on assets of community value determined by the
Assets of Community Value and Local Heritage List
Committee (standing item)
To receive for information any decisions made by the Assets of
Community Value.


8

No decisions to report.

Budget 2021/22 - Quarter 1 Forecast Outturn

13 - 37

To consider the Budget 2021/22 – Quarter 1 Forecast Outturn
report.
9

Review of the Planning Service
To consider the Review of the Planning Service report.

38 - 95

MEETINGS AND THE PUBLIC
In light of the High Court judgement regarding the extension of remote meeting
regulations, Council, Cabinet and Committee meetings have returned to in-person
and have been held on-site from Thursday 6th May 2021. However, due to social
distancing measures and capacity considerations in line with the Council’s risk
assessment, public access and participation will continue to be encouraged virtually
until further notice.
Members of the public are welcome to listen live to the debate of any of the Council’s
Cabinet or Committee meetings. All live broadcasts and meeting papers can be
viewed on the Council’s calendar of meetings webpage.
Members of the public are permitted to speak at this meeting and will be encouraged
to do so via the video conferencing platform Zoom. If you wish to make a statement
via Zoom video link, you will need to register with Democratic Services by midday
two working days before the meeting. There is a 15 minute public speaking limit and
3 minute speaking slots will be given on a first come, first served basis. Those
wishing to make a statement via video link will require an internet connection and a
device with a microphone and video camera enabled. Those wishing to make a
statement to the meeting who do not have internet access can do so via telephone.
Technical guidance on the practicalities of participating via Zoom will be given at the
point of confirming your registration slot, but if you have any questions regarding the
best way to participate in this meeting please call Democratic Services on 01799 510
369/410/467/548 who will advise on the options available.
Agenda and Minutes are available in alternative formats and/or languages. For more
information please call 01799 510510.
Facilities for people with disabilities
If you are deaf or have impaired hearing and would like a signer available at a
meeting, please contact committee@uttlesford.gov.uk or phone 01799 510
369/410/467/548 as soon as possible prior to the meeting.
For information about this meeting please contact Democratic Services
Telephone: 01799 510369, 510548, 510410 or 510467
Email: Committee@uttlesford.gov.uk

General Enquiries
Council Offices, London Road, Saffron Walden, CB11 4ER
Telephone: 01799 510510
Fax: 01799 510550
Email: uconnect@uttlesford.gov.uk
Website: www.uttlesford.gov.uk

Agenda Item 2
CABINET held at COUNCIL CHAMBER - COUNCIL OFFICES, LONDON
ROAD, SAFFRON WALDEN, CB11 4ER, on THURSDAY, 2 SEPTEMBER
2021 at 7.00 pm

CAB30

Present:

Councillor J Lodge (Chair)
Councillors A Armstrong, C Day, J Evans, R Freeman, P Lees,
L Pepper and N Reeve

Officers in
attendance:

J Reynolds (Assistant Director - Legal and Governance),
B Ferguson (Democratic Services Manager), R Harborough
(Director - Public Services), A Webb (Director - Finance and
Corporate Services) and R Tinlin (Interim Chief Executive)

Also
present:

Councillors M Caton (Leader of the Liberal Democrat Group), M
Foley (Chair of Stansted Airport Advisory Panel) and N Gregory
(Chair of the Scrutiny Committee).

PUBLIC SPEAKING
Councillor David Hall of Great Chesterford Parish Council spoke on Items 10 and
12. A summary of his statement has been appended to these minutes.

CAB31

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE AND DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
Apologies for absence were received from Councillor Hargreaves and Councillor
Pavitt (Leader of the Uttlesford Independents Group).
Councillor Evans declared a non-pecuniary interest in relation to Item 13 as a
resident of Stebbing, which was situated under the flight path.

CAB32

MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING
The minutes of the meeting held on 2 July 2021 were approved as a true and
correct record.

CAB33

COMMUNITY SERVICES BUDGET FUNDING FOR THE CURRENT
FINANCIAL YEAR
The Leader moved to Item 9 on the agenda as Councillor Freeman, Portfolio
Holder for Public Services, was required at another meeting. He invited
Councillor Day to present the report.
Councillor Day said there was a perception within the local community that Day
Centres were to be closed. He said this could not be further from the truth and
there was no intention to close Day Centres, but rather re-imagine their purpose
to ensure they were of value to a wider demographic. He said he could foresee

Page 5

them becoming Community Centres or ‘drop-in hubs’ and this work would be
progressed by the Community Services Working Group (CSWG). Funding would
be made available to support the community framework but each individual
centre would be required to make a bid.
Councillor Freeman reiterated that Day Centres would not be closing. Each
Centre would be managed locally and independently of the Council, although the
Council would support each hub in reimagining its purpose through the work of
the CSWG. He said it was important to get each Centre up and running as
quickly as possible. He proposed approval of the recommendation.
Councillor Day duly seconded the proposal.
Councillor Caton welcomed this report and thanked Councillors Day and
Freeman for providing clarity.
RESOLVED to approve:
i. The release of the current budget provision of up to £94,500 to support
delivery of community services on an interim basis through day centres
ii. That the guidance as attached to the report will form the framework for
considering requests for interim budget support.

CAB34

QUESTIONS OR STATEMENTS FROM NON-EXECUTIVE MEMBERS OF THE
COUNCIL (STANDING ITEM)
Councillor Caton asked whether solar panels would be installed on the buildings
at Little Canfield Business Park.
The Leader said he would welcome these questions when considering the
relevant agenda item.
Councillor Caton agreed.

CAB35

CONSIDERATION OF REPORTS FROM OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY
COMMITTEES (STANDING ITEM)
In response to a question from Councillor Gregory, Councillor Evans said an
update on the implementation of the recommendations of the Task and Finish
Group: Planning Obligations would be provided in the autumn. He said additional
professional advice was being sought and templates would be revised and
republished. He said Scrutiny’s request for “bite sized” chunks of information
would be in place for Local Plan Scrutiny in September.
Councillor Gregory said there was a busy work programme over the coming
months and the meeting towards the end of September would be moved. He
said he was pleased to see that the Climate Change Action Plan was coming to
fruition and would be presented to Committee in due course.

Page 6

CAB36

REPORT OF DELEGATED DECISIONS TAKEN BY CABINET MEMBERS
(STANDING ITEM)
Cabinet noted the decision of the Additional Restrictions Grant Policy published
on 9 July 2021.

CAB37

REPORT ON ASSETS OF COMMUNITY VALUE DETERMINED BY THE
ASSETS OF COMMUNITY VALUE AND LOCAL HERITAGE LIST COMMITTEE
(STANDING ITEM)
Cabinet noted the nomination of Hill Green as an Asset of Community Value at
the meeting held on 17 August 2021.

CAB38

LITTLE CANFIELD BUSINESS PARK
Councillor Reeve presented the report, which set out the position with regards to
the commercial element of the Little Canfield Business Park, following discussion
at the Investment Board on 27 July 2021. He responded to Councillor Caton’s
question regarding solar panel installation and said it was not possible for the
time being due to weight load. He proposed approval of the recommendations
set out in the report and put forward by the Investment Board.
Councillor Day seconded the proposal.
Councillor Pepper said she was pleased to see green initiatives being
incorporated into the building, such as built-in water storage.
RESOLVED to endorse the conclusions of the Investment Board and that:
i. The sum of £7,500,000 is allocated to the commercial element of the
Little Canfield Business Park project from the £300,000,000
commercial fund; and
ii. The funding should be split on an 80% interest only and 20%
repayment funding basis; and
iii. Council is requested to endorse the allocation and to authorise the
necessary borrowing.

CAB39

LOCAL PLAN PRELIMINARY OUTLINE STRATEGY
Councillor Evans presented the report on the Local Plan Preliminary Outline
Strategy (POST). He said this outline strategy was required to inform the work of
the emerging Local Plan and had already been considered by the Local Plan
Leadership group (LPLG). The draft vision and objectives and draft housing
requirement had informed the outline strategy, alongside national and local

Page 7

policy, the corporate strategy, the first consultation on the Local Plan and
emerging evidence. He highlighted the key threads underpinning the approach,
and the amendments requested by the LPLG. He said the recommendations of
the LPLG should be respected and proposed approval.
Councillor Lees seconded the proposal.
Councillor Gregory said he was speaking as Chair of Scrutiny. He said it was
difficult to find anything to disagree with the LPLG in terms of their amendments,
but he challenged their conclusions in paragraph 9. He suggested that all
Members read over the Inspectors report from January 2020 that “forensically
dissects” the case for stand-alone Garden Communities. Furthermore, he said
the site of Chesterford Research Park would not have been deemed suitable for
development if it were not for the history of the site. Building a settlement nearby
would not resolve the infrastructure problems of this geographically outlying
location and he asked Councillor Evans to revisit this issue.
Councillor Caton said he was a member of the LPLG. He compared this POST
document with that of the Greater Cambridge Planning Partnership, which he
considered to be more ambitious and visionary. He said Uttlesford’s Local Plan
needed to be sold to the community. More inspiration was required and the
population needed to be prepared for the difficult decisions ahead.
Councillor Reeve said he was satisfied with the principles outlined in the report
and more detailed semantics would come forward in due course.
Councillor Lees said this was a working document and improvements would be
applied as the process moved forward. She said there would be no predetermination and all evidence would be assessed before making a decision.
She said the Plan was ambitious, and cited the aspiration to have only 50% of
commuter journeys made by car.
Councillor Evans said the principle of Garden Communities would be debated
and reviewed, but this was by no means a way of breathing life into the failed
Local Plan. He said the more inspirational and visionary elements of the Plan
had been made in previous documentation, but accepted that more positive and
aspirational communications would be a good step forward.
RESOLVED to agree the Preliminary Outline Strategy (POST) so as to
inform work on the emerging Local Plan.

CAB40

REPORT TO APPROVE THE REVISED MUSEUM MANAGEMENT
AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE COUNCIL AND SAFFRON WALDEN MUSEUM
SOCIETY LTD
Councillor Freeman left the meeting at 8.00pm.
Councillor Armstrong presented the report on the Museum Management
agreement between UDC and Saffron Walden Museum Society Ltd. The report
was accompanied by the Museum Management Agreement 2020, which had

Page 8

been revised to incorporate the Museum's off-site store at the Shirehill Depot
and other minor updates. Approval for the revised Agreement was requested
and necessary before the Museum's next Accreditation review by Arts Council
England, due in 2022, and further applications for National Lottery funding. He
proposed approval of the recommendation.
Councillor Pepper seconded the proposal.
RESOLVED to approve the revised Museum Management Agreement
between Uttlesford District Council and Saffron Walden Museum Society
Ltd.

CAB41

ETHICAL INVESTMENT POLICY
Councillor Reeve presented the report relating to the Ethical Investment Policy,
which had been recommended to Cabinet by the Investment Board. He thanked
Councillor Khan and the Director – Corporate and Financial Services for their
work on the Policy. He said the core elements had been taken from the United
Nations model policy and, whilst it was simple, it was effective. He said the
model policy that had been debated by the Investment Board had included
“excluded industries,” such as tobacco, but these had been removed as the
majority of members on the Investment Board felt it was better to use the
principles outlined in the Policy in their own right, rather than rely on an exclusion
list. He proposed approval of the recommendation.
Councillor Pepper duly seconded.
Councillor Caton said he was disappointed that the exclusions had not been
included in the recommended policy, and felt that things such as gambling
should also have been excluded from any council investment strategy.
Councillor Gregory commended the Policy.
RESOLVED to recommend to Council that it formally adopts the revised
Ethical Investment Policy as set out at Appendix One.

CAB42

GOVERNMENT CONSULTATION ON NIGHT FLIGHTS RESTRICTIONS AT
HEATHROW, GATWICK AND STANSTED AIRPORTS BEYOND 2024, PLUS
NATIONAL NIGHT FIGHTS POLICY.
Councillor Evans presented the report regarding the Government consultation on
night flight restrictions. He thanked the Senior Planning Policy Officer for his
expertise on the subject and the report. He said the report had been considered
by Stansted Airport Advisory Panel (STAAP) and was debated extensively; these
comments had been incorporated into the agenda papers. The Government had
outlined the value of night flights but STAAP had wanted data on the value to the
local economy. The Panel had also wanted to learn more on the necessity of
passenger night flights. He concluded by saying that the response would be

Page 9

worked upon further by himself and officers, subject to any additional views and
the approval of Cabinet, and proposed the recommendation.
Councillor Reeve said two further discussions of STAAP had taken place, due to
the weight and complexity of the subject. He seconded the proposal of Councillor
Evans to allow further comments on the draft response to be made.
Councillor Pepper reiterated a number of points in the report and said night
flights should only be used when essential. A balanced assessment should be
carried out to find the true economic value of night flights as weighed against
environmental damage.
Councillor Foley, Chair of STAAP, was invited to speak by the Leader. He said
he wanted to move towards a period of reducing night flights, and they should
only be used as a last resort. He thanked members of the public, Martin Peachey
and Michael Young, who had spoken to STAAP at the previous meetings.

CAB43

ALLOCATION OF GRANT FUNDING (SPORTS PROVISION MAJOR
PROJECTS)
Councillor Armstrong presented the report on the allocation of grant funding for
major sports provision.
The Chief Executive said the recommendation should read “Cabinet awards
grants up to the sum of £51,871.55 for the applications received and
recommended by the Grants Panel,” in order to check the figures on one of the
applications.
The Leader accepted the adjustment and said he was pleased that such funding
would be made available to organisations in the District.
Councillor Day said the grants would be welcomed by local clubs and the
funding would assist in getting young people to participate in sports. He
supported the proposal.
Councillor Evans and Pepper highlighted the issues of LED floodlighting and the
need to mitigate against light pollution.
Councillor Armstrong said the Council was working with a number of clubs who
were not currently applicable for major project funding. However, they would be
directed to alternative funding options, where possible. He proposed the
recommendation, as read by the Chief Executive. This was duly seconded by
Councillor Day.
RESOLVED that Cabinet awards grants up to the sum of £51,871.55 for
the applications received and recommended by the Grants Panel.

CAB44

NEW COMMUNITIES COLLABORATION PARTNERSHIP

Page 10

Councillor Evans presented the New Communities Collaboration Partnership
report. The report set out the proposed ‘Partnership Approach’ to creating new
communities as part of preparing the new Local Plan. The report also included a
Model Memorandum of Understanding that landowners, promoters and
developers of larger development sites would be invited to sign with the Council
as part of the Partnership Approach. This was important as it would allow the
development community to know “where they stood” with the Council on
dealings with the new Local Plan. He said it was a technical document and the
principles flowed from existing council policy. He proposed approval of the
recommendation set out in the report.
The Leader seconded the proposal.
Councillor Gregory commended the report and the work presented to Cabinet.
He agreed that it was a positive move to bring clarity to the process for external
stakeholders. However, there were two issues with the document. Firstly, it was
not easily accessible and was complicated. He said it should have been
considered by LPLG or Local Plan Scrutiny before determination by Cabinet.
Secondly, the document needed to make clear the role of parish and town
councils in the district. They could add value to the Local Plan process and
should not be an afterthought. He asked Cabinet to refer the report back for
further work.
The Chief Executive said the document was based on previous discussions at
LPLG and Scrutiny, and therefore he understood why it was considered logical
to bring the decision to Cabinet in the first instance.
Councillor Evans agreed and said the document was technical and would have
generally been in the purview of officers. However, he said he would welcome
Scrutiny’s views on the paper although he made the point that the document was
technical and legal, and had been drafted by external solicitors. It was not
something that could be drafted by Committee. He added that the Council
wanted to work in good faith with all stakeholders, including developers and town
and parish councils.
In response to a question from Councillor Pepper, Councillor Evans said green
space and bio-diversity considerations would be “swept up” by the expression of
Garden City principles.
The Chief Executive said he was confident that this working document would be
incorporated into the wider policy base of the Local Plan, including green
principles being built in as the Plan moved forward. He further explained that the
Local Plan would be a series of documents that set out the Council’s aspirations
for future development. This implementation document was essentially advanced
notice on what the Council wanted from the developer community. Furthermore,
this was not pre-empting debate; it was simply creating a platform for a common
approach with developers.
Councillor Gregory warned against alienating town and parish councils; they
were vital stakeholders who required consultation due to their local knowledge,
and he requested that they be referenced in the documentation.

Page 11

RESOLVED:
i. To support the proposed New Communities Collaboration Partnership
approach set out in Appendix 1 for any larger development sites in the
forthcoming new local plan;
ii. To endorse the Model Memorandum of Understanding set out in
Appendix 2 and the supplementary paper as the basis for discussion
and agreement between the Council and landowners, developers or
promoters of large scale development sites in the forthcoming new
local plan.
The meeting was closed at 9.01pm.

Page 12

Agenda Item 8
Committee:

Cabinet

Date:

Title:

Budget Forecast Outturn - 2021/22 Quarter 1

Tuesday 19 October
2021

Portfolio
Holder:

Councillor Neil Hargreaves,

Report
Author:

Angela Knight, Assistant Director - Resources

Key decision:

aknight@uttlesford.gov.uk

No

Portfolio Holder for Finance and Budget

Summary
1. This report details the financial performance of the General Fund, Housing Revenue
Account, Capital Programme and Treasury Management. It is based upon actual
expenditure and income from April to June and predicts a forecast for the end of the
2021/22 financial year.
2. The General Fund is predicting a net overspend of £563,000, the key reasons are due
to the impact of the change in the Waste and Recycling market and an increase in
planning appeals.
3. The Housing Revenue Account has a net budget deficit of £19,000 which is due to
additional revenue contributions to the HRA capital programme.
4. The Capital Programme has a current year net overspend of £112,578,000; after
adjusting for requested slippage of £573,000 to be carried forward to 2022/23
(detailed later in this report), this leaves an actual full year predicted net overspend of
£113,151,000. The overspend is due to the commercial investments which were
undertaken after the budget setting process was completed for 2021/22.
Recommendations
5. The Cabinet is recommended to approve The General Fund, Housing Revenue
Account and Capital Programme forecast outturn positions including the updated use
of reserves and requested slippage for the Capital Programme.
Financial Implications
6. Included in the main body of the report
Background Papers
7. None

Page 13

Impact
Communication/Consultation

Corporate Management Team (CMT) and Joint
Executive Team (JET)

Community Safety

N/A

Equalities

N/A

Health and Safety

N/A

Human Rights/Legal Implications

N/A

Sustainability

N/A

Ward-specific impacts

N/A

Workforce/Workplace

N/A

Covid-19 Financial Impact
8. The direct impact of the Covid 19 pandemic has lessened and we are now in the
recovery phase. The first three months of the financial year was focused on
supporting businesses and organisations in the initial phased recovery period and the
council continued to administer the Grant schemes made available by the
Government.
9. The council continues to receive some direct service grants to support specific areas,
such as Homelessness, Health and Wellbeing, Environmental Health and the track
and trace payments to encourage people to self-isolate.
10. The forecast position in this report is based on information available at the end of
quarter 1 (30 June) and is consistent with the Ministry for Housing, Communities and
Local Government (MHCLG) monthly returns on the financial impact of Covid-19.
11. These forecasts are subject to change as the situation and circumstances evolve,
these events and the subsequent financial impacts are outside the council’s control
and influence.
Key Risks to the forecast outturn
12. There is still uncertainty on the longer-term impact of the Covid-19 pandemic as
normal service activity begins to return to normal and the key areas at risk of
fluctuations in income and expenditure are:


The sales, fees and charges income has been budgeted based on the
information available in December 2020 and the outturn is based on a steady
recovery.



Council Tax and Business Rates income collection may decline as the
Government support packages come to an end.

Page 14



Local Council Tax Support and Exceptional Hardship payments increase as
unemployment and the number of households with reduced incomes
increases.

General Fund Revenue Account
13. The net operating expenditure is £4,557,000 underspent and after adjusting for the
associated use of reserves, this gives an overall net overspend of £563,000. The
following table provides a summary of the budget outturn and a detailed budget
summary and the predicted position for each service is shown in Appendix A.
2020/21
£'000
Outturn

Original
Budget

1,041
1,557
4,791
5,914

1,097
2,677
4,265
7,697

Portfolio (Service) Budgets

13,303

Net Corporate investment Income
Corporate Items
Net Direct Expenditure

2021/22
Current
Budget

Outturn

Variance

1,097
2,677
4,265
7,697

1,087
2,627
4,585
7,694

(10)
(50)
320
(3)

15,736

15,736

15,993

258

(2,039)
7,328

(6,951)
4,333

(6,951)
5,629

(7,837)
4,320

(885)
(1,309)

18,592

13,117

14,413

12,477

(1,937)

(14,118)

(1,230)

(1,230)

(3,850)

(2,620)

Net Operating Expenditure

4,474

11,888

13,184

8,626

(4,557)

Transfers to/(from) Reserves

1,482

(5,729)

(7,025)

(1,905)

5,120

OVERALL NET POSITION

5,957

6,159

6,159

6,721

563

Communities & Partnerships
Housing & Economic Development
Environmental Services
Finance & Administration

Funding

14. A summary table of all the General Fund variances reconciling to the final overspend
of £563,000 has been detailed in the following table.

Page 15

Quarter 1 budget underspend analysis

£'000 £'000
Normal Service Activity

331
(73)

Covid Related Service Activity
Direct Services Variance
Investment Income - Commercial Assets

(765)

Investment Income - Aspire (Chesterford Research Park)

(121)

Capital Financing

(784)

Treasury Management Cost of Borrowing

(525)

Paragraph 17 and appendix B provides more details on all service variances
258
Paragraph 18 and 19 provides further explanations on additional income
received
(765)

Corporate Services Variance
Business Rates

Paragraph 18 and 19 provides further explanations on additional income
received
Paragraph 20 and 21 provides further details and corresponding note for
reserves at paragraph 25
Paragraph 18 and 19 provides further explanations on the reduction in
interest charged
(1,430)
Paragraph 22 and 23 provides a detailed explanation and in the
corresponding note for reserves at Paragraph 26 and 27

(2,620)

Funding Variance

(2,620)

Business Rates

As above

3,959
777
373

Capital Financing
Lease Income
Other

As above
This is now accounted for as direct lease income as per paragraphs 18 and
19, so released from the reserve

11

Movement in Reserves Variance

5,120

General Fund net variance

563

Direct Services Net Expenditure
15. Direct Services are reporting a net overspend of £258,000, after adjusting for
associated reserves movements and expenditure supported from prior year capital
slippage the actual service position shows a £228,000 net underspend as set out in
the table below.
Normal Service Activity
Covid -19 Service Impact
Savings/Additional Income
Costs/Reduced Income
One off
Ongoing
One off
Ongoing Savings/Additional
Costs/Reduced Other Immaterial Total Net Variance
Income
Income

£'000

Communities & Partnerships
Housing & Economic Development
Environmental Services
Finance & Admin
Total Service Variances
Expenditure supported from Capital Financing
Net reserves allocations
Net Direct Service Expenditure

(12)
(52)
(243)
(556)
(864)
(53)
(91)
(1,008)

(40)
(19)
(56)
(115)
(230)

61
16
332
357
766

32
4
305
326
667

(84)
(260)
(154)
(51)
(548)

36
262
138
39
475

(4)
0
(3)
(2)
(9)

(230)

2
768

667

(41)
(589)

153
628

(9)

16. The direct services variances are made up of a number of over and underspends and
full details of variances over £20,000 are shown in Appendix B.
17. The key areas of overspend which are not supported by compensating savings are
explained below;
Waste and Recycling – Is reporting a total net overspend of £170,000.

Page 16

(10)
(50)
320
(2)
258
(53)
23
228



The disposal fee for recyclable materials is predicted to cost an additional
£118,000, due to an increase in the gate fee from £34.66 to £47.81 per tonne.
The recycling market is particularly volatile and subject to changes in fees
throughout the year which are out of our control, we expect this fee to be
reduced in quarter two, current predictions show that the gate fee will be
lowered in August to £38.73 per tonne and reduce the overspend to £65,000.
These figures are based on annual recycling of 9,000 tonnes.



Trade Waste income is reporting an income loss of £93,000 this is due to one
of our larger customers who ceased trading in 2020/21. As the economy
recovers it is hoped that the service will be able to gain new contracts to
mitigate the loss. There is also a risk that if the economy does not recover to
the expected levels the trade waste service could lose further income.
Now that restrictions have been lifted and businesses are operating as normal,
a targeted campaign is being put in place to gain new trade waste customers
and minimise the current loss of income.



Garden Waste subscriptions have increased and this has generated additional
income of £41,000. The garden waste service does not aim to make a profit
and additional income will be reinvested in the service. An increase in
customers after a certain level will require additional resources to deliver the
service.

Planning Appeals – Is reporting an increased cost of £155,000


The Council has received notification of three public inquiries to date and are
awaiting confirmation of a possible fourth one. All the inquiries will require
Queens Counsel, Planning and Landscape consultants and some may also
require Heritage and Air Quality studies.
The Legal Service has begun the recruitment of the additional Solicitor posts
(approved as part of the 2021/22 Budget), once in place it is expected to have
the knowledge, expertise and experience within the team minimising the need
for support and advice from external legal consultants and Queens Counsel.

Commercial and Investment Income
18. The following table provides an analysis of the investment income generated from
both the Council’s commercial assets and the investment in Chesterford Research
Park, through Aspire (CRP) Ltd. The net income available to the General Fund
revenue account after all associated costs have been incurred is predicted to be
£1,364,000 higher than expected when setting the budget.

Page 17

Investment Income Analysis

Budget Forecast Variance
£'000
£'000
£'000

Income
Aspire (CRP)
Commercial Investment Portfolio

(2,316)
(4,905)
(7,221)

(2,436)
(5,620)
(8,056)

(120)
(715)
(835)

270
270

220
220

(50)
(50)

1,814
170
0
1,984

1,289
165
51
1,505

(525)
(5)
51
(479)

(4,967)

(6,331)

(1,364)

Costs
Commercial Consultancy and Fees
Treasury Management Costs
Interest charged
Broker Fees
External Treasury Advice on long term borrowing options

Total Net Revenue Income

19. The increase in the net investment income is due to the following;


The council received a compensation payment at completion of the purchase
for the Vets in Scotland for a rent-free period. Initially this was held in the
reserves to be released over a three year period. An adjustment to the
accounting treatment now includes this within the actual lease income, the
contra entry for this is shown in the reserves.



The income for the Amazon site has been reprofiled to reflect the forecast
completion date.



The investment income has increased due to two additional loans to Aspire
(CRP) Ltd (these are set out in paragraph 40) and fluctuations in interest rates
available for cash flow activities.



The cost of borrowing (interest charged) has decreased due to the use of
short term borrowing being extended for the whole financial year. Rates for
short term borrowing remain extremely low with the average interest rate at
0.10%.

Corporate Costs
20. The total corporate costs are showing an underspend of £1,430,000; this includes the
reduced cost of borrowing and the additional investment income which are discussed
in paragraph 19 above.
21. The remaining underspend relates to the Capital financing, the revenue cost of the
capital programme. The underspend of £784,000 is the cost of budgeted projects
being slipped to future year/s and a reduction in Minimum Revenue Provision to
reflect the change in the level of internal borrowing required. £777,000 of this in year
underspend has been added to the Capital Slippage reserve to align with the
projected capital spend in future year/s. This gives a bottom line net impact of £7,000
actual underspend.
Funding
22. The Government extended the Covid support scheme for rate reliefs available to
businesses and organisations until the 31 July. The Council are compensated in full
for all reliefs awarded via the S31 grant. This grant is received in the current year and

Page 18

the impact of the reliefs are accounted for in the following year, the grant is held in
reserves and drawn down as required to match expenditure in the year it is incurred.
Full details of the actual reserves position are discussed in paragraphs 26 and 27.
23. Business Rates is currently showing a net positive variance of £2,620,000; this is
offset against the S31 grant funding held in reserves as discussed in the above
paragraph. Full details of the actual corresponding reserves movements are
discussed in paragraphs 26 and 27.
Reserves
24. The original budget included a net draw on reserves of £5,729,000 and following the
year end outturn for 2020/21 the slippage related to the financing of the capital
programme for the previous year has now been added to the capital slippage reserve.
This gives an updated budgeted use of reserves of £7,025,000.
25. The outturn for quarter 1 shows a predicted net reduction of £5,120,000 in the use of
reserves giving a final predicted net drawdown of £1,905,000. The following table sets
out the movements in reserves from the original budget to the current position and full
details of all the reserves has been set out in Appendix C.
Forecast in year Movement in Reserves
£'000
Drawdown

£'000
Additions

Original Budget (net use of reserves)
Year end adjustment for 2020/21 Capital Slippage
Revised Budget (net use of reserves)

(5,729)
(1,296)
(7,025)

Health and Wellbeing

(7)

Homelessness

(7)

Benefits Administration (MTFS reserve)

(7)

Development Management

(29)

Transformation Reserve

(52)

Transformation Reserve

(10)

Housing Strategy

Direct Service - Reserve in year movement

29
(20)

124

(132)

155

Capital Slippage
Planning

MHCLG grant - Covid specific funding will be drawn down as
required
New burdens funding for business grant administration c/fwd
to support future year costs and drawdown of prior year
funding to support residents in exceptional hardship
23

777

Adjustment to capital slippage updated to reflect the year
end final position for 2020/21 and the forecast for 2021/22
Contribution to support the ArcGIS software as per capital
programme
Rent compensation held in reserve, this is now accounted for
the direct services lease income
Net allocation of S31 grant for years 2020/21 and 2021/22 please see further explanation in paragraphs 26 and 27

(12)

Lease Income (MTFS reserve)

373

Business Rates
Other Reserve in year movement

Draw down of prior year grant funds to support the Food bank
services
Draw down of prior year grant funds to provide rent deposits
to residents in financial hardship
Draw down of prior year new burdens funding to support the
administration of Track and Trace scheme
Allocation of reserve to support the additional agency
required
Allocation of Transformation reserve to support the costs of
change in Chief Executive
Allocation to support the implementation of the Customer
Services booking system
Reduced funds required - allocated to reserve for future use

2

Elections
Revenues (MTFS reserve)

£'000

3,959
(12)

5,109

Forecast net use of reserves

5,097
(1,905)

26. The Business Rates reserve shows a net movement of £3,959,000 and this is the
Section 31 grant provided by MHCLG for the reimbursement of business rate reliefs
awarded.
27. The cost of the reliefs on our collection fund account are not accounted for until the
following financial year; reliefs awarded in 2020/21 are accounted for in the budget for
2021/22. The grant payments are made in the year the reliefs are awarded and we

Page 19

hold the grant funds in reserves to be matched against the associated income losses
in the correct accounting year.


The original budget predicted a required drawdown of £6,123,000 relating
to 2020/21 reliefs and reduced collection rates, the actual cost at the yearend was £4,837,000 (S31 grant received to match this), this reduced the
level of reserve funds required by £1,286,000.



An addition to reserves of £2,673,000 has been applied and this will be
released in the next financial year to match the cost of the current year
reliefs to be accounted for in 2022/23.

Housing Revenue Account (HRA)
Covid-19 Impact
28. The housing services are currently impacted by any covid related pressures. There
has been a significant increase in people presenting as homeless but the resources to
manage this are supported in full by the Homelessness Grant received from MHCLG.

Service Delivery
29. The HRA is predicting a net operating surplus of £69,000 and after adjusting for
funding contributions and reserves the bottom line impact is forecast at £19,000
deficit. The following table provides a summary of the budget and the full budget is set
out in Appendix D.

Outturn

Original
Budget

2021/22
Current
Forecast
Budget
Outturn

(16,139)
4,749
8,362

(16,170)
4,821
10,523

(16,170)
4,821
10,523

(16,210)
4,792
10,523

(40)
(28)
(0)

(3,028)

(827)

(827)

(895)

(69)

Funding of Capital Programme from HRA
Use of Reserves

952
2,102

650
177

3,235
(2,408)

3,484
(2,568)

249
(160)

Total Use of Reserves/Funding

3,054

827

827

916

89

26

0

0

19

19

2020/21
£'000

Total Service Income
Total Service Expenditure
Total Corporate Costs
OPERATING (SURPLUS)/DEFICIT

(SURPLUS)/DEFICIT

Variance

30. The key variances relating to the direct service delivery are detailed below:


Rental Income of £30,000 for Newport Depot, information for this income
stream was not available when setting the original budget



Housing Repairs additional costs of £26,000 for a historical invoice received
which related to a prior financial year
Staff vacancies show one off saving in Housing Services of £35,000 and
£19,000 for Sheltered Housing.



Page 20

31. An increased contribution from revenue of £249,000 has been made to support the
capital programme of works and this is funded from the Capital Projects reserve.
Reserves
32. The reserve balances at 1 April 2021 were £4,381,000 and the predicted net use of
reserves is £2,568,000, this leaves a forecast yearend balance of £1,813,000. The
detailed reserves balances are set out in Appendix E.
33. The movement in reserves is made up of the following;


£2,618,000 net drawdown to support capital projects as set out in the capital
programme.



£50,000 added to reserves to meet the working balance requirement. The
council is required to ensure that a minimum level of contingency reserve is
maintained and this is a specified calculation based on the levels of income
and expenditure.

Capital Programme
34. The current budget for the 2021/22 Capital Programme is £15,945,000 and this is
made up of the original budget of £8,420,000 and the slippage of £7,525,000 brought
forward from 2020/21 as set out in the Final Outturn report as approved at the
Cabinet meeting in July.
35. The forecast outturn spend is predicted to be £128,523,000 against the current
budget of £15,945,000, this gives a total net overspend of £112,578,000. After
allowing for current year requested slippage of £573,000 this leaves an actual net
overspend of £113,151,000.
36. The overspend is due to the net effect of the following capital projects/programmes of
work;
General Fund


£111,024,000 additional spend for the commercial investment purchases
which were not included in the original capital programme budget. All
purchases will be fully financed from the direct income generated from the
associated commercial activity of each purchase.



£183,000 – reprofiling of the waste vehicle replacement scheme.



£2,034,000 additional spend for the continued refurbishment of the Little
Canfield site and the additional spend includes development of the
commercial areas.

Housing Revenue Account


£241,000 additional spend on right to buy schemes relating to Gold Close and
£104,000 on the sheltered schemes at Alexia House and Parkside.

Page 21



£493,000 reduced spend on HRA general repairs, this is the current position
as advised by the Uttlesford Norse partnership and these costings are subject
to variations.

37. The slippage of £573,000 relates to the Superfast broadband contract which is
unlikely to complete until late in the next financial year (2022/23).
38. The full Capital Programme is set out in Appendix F; this provides a summary of all
the schemes for the Commercial Investments, General Fund and HRA, along with the
balances for S106 funds.
Investments
39. The Council has directly purchased six commercial properties and through its wholly
owned company Aspire (CRP) Ltd purchased a 50% share in Chesterford Research
Park, this was in line with the requirements of the Commercial Strategy approved by
Members in February 2021.
40. The details of the loans to Aspire (CRP) Ltd are set in the Treasury Management
section of this report at paragraphs 47 and 48. The direct commercial property
investments are listed in the table below along with the purchase price (excluding
stamp duty, Land Registry fees and insurance) and the predicted income.

Commercial Asset

Purchase Price
£'000

Skyway House - Takeley
Veterinarian Practice - Livingstone, Scotland
Waitrose Distribution Centre - Chorley
Amazon - Gloucestershire
MOOG - Tewksbury
Stane Retail Park (phase 1), Colchester
TOTAL

20,000
5,925
55,000
42,514
35,000
30,424
188,863

Income
Income
2021/22 Future Years
£'000
£'000
1,142
332
2,272
1,088
786
0
5,620

1,170
373
2,508
2,270
1,429
1,784
9,534

41. The forward funding acquisition of the new build logistics unit at Gloucester, pre-let to
Amazon, is on schedule with the tenant taking occupation by 1 November 2021.
42. The forward funding acquisition of the new build headquarters for Moog Controls Ltd
is on schedule to complete in May 2022.
43. Stane Retail Park located in Colchester is an out of town retail development, phase
one is forward funding of the site and two stores have been pre-let to Aldi and B&Q.
Completion is scheduled for October 2021.
44. All of the tenant leases have upward only increases in their leases, which in most
cases are compounded five yearly and therefore will increase the rental income in
2025/26.
Treasury Management

Page 22

45. Treasury Management Activities have been in accordance with the approved strategy.
Full details of all the council’s investments and borrowing are attached as Appendix
G.
46. The average rates of interest for the period April to December;
 Investments – 0.03%
 Borrowing – 0.10%
47. The council’s long term investments relate to the loans to Aspire (CRP) Ltd for the
purchase of the 50% share of Chesterford Research Park and the ongoing
development of the park. The table below provides details of the investments to date
and the terms of borrowing:
Drawdown
Date

Amount Loan Term

Rate

£'000

03/05/2017
26/03/2018
02/01/2019
09/06/2020
01/07/2020
20/08/2020
15/03/2021
26/08/2021

47,250
223
2,518
1,250
2,600
3,000
2,975
780

Total of Loans

60,596

Repayment Basis

%

50 years
49 years 1 month
48 years 4 months
20 years
20 years
20 years
21 years
20 years

4.0
4.0
4.0
4.5
4.5
4.5
4.5
4.5

2021/22 Interest
Receivable
£'000

Interest Only
Interest Only
Interest Only
Principal & Interest
Principal & Interest
Principal & Interest
Principal & Interest
Principal & Interest

1,890
9
101
50
104
116
121
20
2,411

48. The council has two long term loans:
I. £37,000,000 with Phoenix Life Limited over 40 years for the investment in
Aspire (CRP) Ltd. The loan was drawn down in 3 separate stages and the final
sum was drawn down in July 2021. No principal repayments will be made until
5th January 2022 and is at a fixed rate of interest @ 2.86% for all 3 drawdowns.
II. Housing Revenue Account (HRA) borrowed £88,407,000 in 2012 to fund the
purchase of the council’s housing stock; this is a mix of fixed and variable rate
loans over a period of 30 years, with no principal repayment for the first five
years to allow for increased HRA housing development. The annual interest
payment is £2,604,000 with a current annual principal repayment of £2,000,000.
As at 31 March 2021 the sum of £80,407,000 remains outstanding.
Risk Analysis
49.
Risk

Likelihood

Impact

Mitigating actions

Actual income and
expenditure will
vary from forecast,
requiring

2 – some
variability is
inevitable

2 – budget will
be closely
monitored and
prompt action

Budgetary Monitoring
and monthly analysis of
the financial position

Page 23

adjustments to
budget and/or
service delivery

taken to deal
with variances

1 = Little or no risk or impact
2 = Some risk or impact – action may be necessary.
3 = Significant risk or impact – action required
4 = Near certainty of risk occurring, catastrophic effect or failure of project

Page 24

Appendix A
General Fund Budget Summary
£'000

2020/21
Outturn

2021/22

Quarter 1 April to June 2021/22
Current
Budget

Actuals to
Date

Variance to
Date

Original
Budget

Current
Budget

Outturn

Variance

268
(174)
(495)
2,027
1,627

1,097
2,677
4,265
7,697
15,736

1,097
2,677
4,265
7,697
15,736

1,087
2,627
4,585
7,694
15,993

(10)
(50)
320
(3)
258

Portfolio Budgets
Community & Partnerships
Housing & Economic Development
Environmental
Finance & Administration
Subtotal - Direct Portfolio Budgets

1,041
1,557
4,791
5,914
13,303

243
281
596
567
1,687

512
107
101
2,594
3,314

Net Corporate investment Income

(2,039)

(1,151)

(1,661)

(510)

(4,635)

(4,635)

(5,400)

(765)

Total - Net service costs

11,264

537

1,653

1,117

11,100

11,100

10,593

(507)

Corporate Items
Capital Financing Costs
PFI interest cost
External borrowing interest charges
Profit shares
Financial Investment Income
Exceptional corporate items
Pension Fund - Added Years
Pension Triennial Payment
Corporate Core HRA Share
Recharge to HRA
Subtotal - Corporate Items

9,499
372
807
(3)
(2,306)
7
86
582
(405)
(1,310)
7,328

3,626
360
1,814
0
(2,316)
0
85
0
(385)
(1,167)
2,017

4,922
360
1,814
0
(2,316)
0
85
0
(385)
(1,167)
3,313

4,138
360
1,289
(3)
(2,436)
3
85
0
(385)
(1,167)
1,883

(784)
0
(525)
(3)
(120)
3
0
0
0
0
(1,430)

Subtotal - General Fund

18,592

13,117

14,413

12,477

(1,937)

(20)
8
(2,475)
380
(104)
(6,298)
(279)
(3,635)
(1,694)
(14,118)

55
4,785
(1,068)
393
(107)
(1,282)
(293)
(2,823)
(890)
(1,230)

55
4,785
(1,068)
393
(107)
(1,282)
(293)
(2,823)
(890)
(1,230)

55
4,837
(1,112)
523
(134)
(4,013)
(293)
(2,823)
(890)
(3,850)

0
53
(44)
129
(27)
(2,731)
0
0
0
(2,620)

4,474

11,888

13,184

8,626

(4,557)

4,801
0
(45)
203
127
48
(3)
0
0
500
216
25
121
13
(916)
203
0
7
0
(6)
0
(4,343)
0
0
150
380
1,482

(6,123)
0
13
0
(38)
(473)
0
0
0
794
660
30
102
0
(15)
0
0
(640)
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
(40)
(5,729)

(6,123)
0
13
(1,296)
(38)
(473)
0
0
0
794
660
30
102
0
(15)
0
0
(640)
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
(40)
(7,025)

(2,164)
0
13
(519)
(38)
(3)
(62)
0
0
794
660
59
95
(7)
(55)
0
0
(640)
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
(40)
(1,905)

3,959
0
0
777
0
470
(62)
0
0
0
0
29
(7)
(7)
(40)
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
5,120

5,957

6,159

6,159

6,721

563

(5,957)

(6,159)

(6,159)

(6,159)

0

0

0

0

563

563

Funding
Council Tax - Collection Fund Balance
Business Rates - Collection Fund Balance
Business Rates - UDC Share (net of tariff)
Business Rates - Levy/(Safety Net) Payment
Business Rates - Renewable Energy Schemes
Collection fund - Section 31 Funding
Rural Services Delivery Grant
New Homes Bonus
Covid impact funding
Subtotal - Funding
Net Operating Expenditure
Transfer to/(from) Reserves
Business Rates
Departments for Work and Pensions
Licensing
Capital Slippage
Working Balance
Medium Term Financial Strategy
Transformation
EU Exit
Income Protection
Emergency Response
Economic Development
Elections
Homelessness
Health and Wellbeing
Planning and Development
Strategic Initiatives Fund
Garden Communities
Sustainable New Communities
Pension Reserve
New Homes Bonus Ward Members
Voluntary Sector
Waste Depot Relocation Project
Waste Management
Private Finance Initiative
Sports reserve
Climate Change
Subtotal - Movement in General Fund Reserves
COUNCIL TAX REQUIREMENT

Council Tax (precept levied on Collection Fund)

OVERALL NET POSITION (Under) / Over spend

Page 25

Appendix A continued…
Portfolio Service Variances

£'000

Community Information
Day Centres
Emergency Planning
Grants & Contributions
Leisure & Performance
Saffron Walden Museum
New Homes Bonus
Private Finance Init
Communities Partnership
Renovation Grants
Portfolio Total

2020/21
Outturn

Original
Budget

2021/22
Current
Budget

Outturn

Variance

48
105
29
363
43
229
82
168
0
(27)

51
95
34
568
47
240
78
11
0
(27)

51
95
34
568
47
240
78
11
0
(27)

49
47
34
614
45
229
78
17
0
(27)

(2)
(47)
0
46
(2)
(11)
0
6
0
0

1,041

1,097

1,097

1,087

(10)

Outturn

Variance

Housing & Economic Development

£'000

2020/21
Outturn

Original
Budget

2021/22
Current
Budget

Building Surveying
Committee Admin
Customer Services Centre
Democratic Represent
Economic Development
Energy Efficiency
Health Improvement
Homelessness
Lifeline
Communications

(41)
265
493
321
148
13
172
172
(164)
178

(11)
308
569
358
611
424
193
143
(160)
241

(11)
308
569
358
611
424
193
143
(160)
241

(20)
308
569
351
611
414
200
141
(160)
213

(9)
0
(0)
(7)
0
(10)
7
(2)
0
(28)

Portfolio Total

1,557

2,677

2,677

2,627

(50)

Page 26

Appendix A continued…
Portfolio Service Variances
Environmental Services

£'000

2020/21
Outturn

Original
Budget

2021/22
Current
Budget

Outturn

Variance

Animal Warden
Grounds Maintenance
Car Park
Development Control
Depots
Garden Planning
Street Cleansing
Housing Strategy
Highways
Local Amenities
Licensing
Vehicle Management
Public Health
Planning Management
Planning Policy
Planning Specialists
Waste Management
Community Safety
Street Services

4
368
(188)
748
56
131
388
46
9
(12)
(155)
416
521
396
463
203
775
341
281

6
364
(573)
(270)
56
0
422
60
8
(13)
(261)
491
718
422
1,660
210
315
398
250

6
364
(573)
(270)
56
0
422
60
8
(13)
(261)
491
718
422
1,660
210
315
398
250

8
363
(578)
(56)
56
0
408
59
5
(13)
(254)
478
647
424
1,658
210
485
398
287

1
(0)
(5)
215
(0)
0
(14)
(2)
(4)
(0)
7
(14)
(71)
2
(3)
(0)
170
0
37

Portfolio Total

4,791

4,265

4,265

4,585

320

Outturn

Variance

Finance & Admin

£'000

Asset Management
Benefits Admin
Corporate Management
Conveniences
Central Services
Corporate Team
Conducting Elections
Electroral Registration
Financial Services
Housing Benefits
Human Resources
Internal Audit
Information Technology
Land Charges
Legal Services
Local Taxation
Norse Partnership
Non Domestic Rates
Office Cleaning
Offices
Revenues Admin
Council Tax Discounts
Portfolio Total

2020/21
Outturn

Original
Budget

2021/22
Current
Budget

0
266
1,140
0
374
(1,987)
(1)
20
1,149
(747)
289
146
1,472
(71)
343
471
0
(69)
215
494
397
(26)

94
353
1,998
0
463
0
4
38
1,176
104
374
159
1,585
(63)
374
(100)
384
(146)
0
211
671
18

94
353
1,998
0
463
0
4
38
1,176
104
374
159
1,585
(63)
374
(100)
384
(146)
0
211
671
18

82
333
2,101
0
409
0
(51)
38
1,235
104
387
158
1,587
(63)
345
(150)
384
(149)
0
383
519
42

(12)
(19)
103
0
(53)
0
(55)
0
59
0
13
(1)
2
0
(29)
(50)
0
(3)
0
172
(153)
24

3,875

7,697

7,697

7,694

(3)

Page 27

Appendix B
General Fund Variances
Direct Services Variance analysis
£'000
Normal Service Activity
Development Management
Grants and Contributions
Green Waste
Corporate Management

Legal Services

Planning Appeals
Public Health
Revenues

Reason for Variance

29
20
46
(41)
56
100

Net cost of staff vacancies and agency to support the service
Additional cost of Service Level Agreement with Essex County Council to provide historic building advice
One off additional grants allocated, funded from the underspend on the Community Projects capital grant
Higher than expected subscriptions to the green waste collections
Cost of Assistant Director Legal & Governance, replaces the Legal Manager Post, saving shown below
Consultancy costs for Interim Chief Executive - offset against savings in substantive post below and the
remainder to be funded from the Transformation Reserve
Vacancy saving on Chief Executive substantive post
Agency cost to support the service whilst recruitment is in progress
Pro rata saving for 2 x Solicitors, assumes appointments will be made by November
Legal Manager post replaced by Assistant Director Legal & Governance as above
Increased cost due to 3 new appeal inquiries which require QC support
One off saving for staff and agency costs due to reduced activity at the airport
Increased court fee income, as recovery processes for Council Tax and Business Rates is reinstated
New Burdens funding for additional support for the administration of business grants (£124,000 transferred to
reserves to cover future years costs)
Additional cost of resources to support Business Grant administration - funded from the New burdens funding
above
Increased gate fee for the disposal of domestic recycling
Loss of Trade Waste Income due to the closure of the Winfresh Site
Post not budgeted for in prior year restructure

(48)
97
(53)
(73)
155
(46)
(50)
(167)
46

Waste and Recycling
Waste Management
Net minor variances

118
93
37
12
331

Covid Related Activity
Council Tax Discounts
Central Services
Public Health
Conducting Elections
Day Centres
Net minor variances

20
(11)
(16)
(29)
(48)

Funds allocated from prior year grant to the Exceptional Hardship Fund
Reduction in cost of postage
Service saving on travel expenses
MHCLG Grant to support the safe delivery of electoral functions and activity - this will be added to reserves
Outcome of review has not been reflected in this forecast and this subject to update and figures may change
in qtr.2

11
(73)

Quarter 1 - Direct Service variance (under)/over spend

258

Page 28

Appendix C
General Fund Reserves

Balance

Transfer From

Transfer to

Transfer

Balance

1st April 2022

General Fund

General Fund

Between Reserves

31st March 2023

7,634
71
35
1,483
1,438
10,661

2,673

(4,837)

0

5,470
71
48
964
1,401
7,954

1,576
1,139
513
1,060
4,287

124

(127)
(62)

200

124

(188)

200

1,773
1,077
513
1,060
4,423

540
540

794
794

0

0

1,334
1,334

463
70
404
131
669
54
22
146
1,863
0
1,781
0
16
0
247
250
307
150
380
6,953

1,000
59
188

TOTAL USABLE RESERVES
TOTAL GENERAL FUND RESERVES

£'000
RINGFENCED RESERVES
Business Rates
Departments for Work and Pensions
Licensing
Capital Slippage
Working Balance
TOTAL RINGFENCED RESERVES
USABLE RESERVES
Financial Management Reserves
Medium Term Financial Strategy
Transformation
EU Exit
Income Protection
Contingency Reserves
Emergency Response
Service Reserves
Economic Development
Elections
Homelessness
Health and Wellbeing
Planning
Neighbourhood Planning
Housing Strategy
Development Control
Strategic Initiatives Fund
Garden Communities
Sustainable New Communities
Pension Reserve
New Homes Bonus Ward Members
Voluntary Sector
Waste Depot Relocation Project
Waste Management
Private Finance Initiative
Sports reserve
Climate Change

13
204
2,890

(723)
(38)
(5,598)

(340)

500

(500)

150
300
2,198

(150)
(340)
(2,126)

(200)

1,123
129
499
124
657
39
24
117
1,663
0
1,141
0
16
0
86
411
307
150
340
6,825

11,780

3,116

(2,314)

0

12,582

22,441

6,007

(7,912)

0

20,536

(93)
(7)
(12)
(15)

2
(29)
(200)
(640)

Page 29

(161)
161

Appendix D
Housing Revenue Account Budget Summary

£000

2020/21
Outturn

Housing Revenue Account Income
Dwellings Rent
Garage Rents
Land Rents
Charges for Services & Facilities
Contributions Towards Expenditure
Total Service Income

(14,797)
(224)
(1)
(1,035)
(82)
(16,139)

(3,719)
(58)
(0)
(265)
0
(4,043)

(3,432)
(50)
(1)
(245)
(3)
(3,732)

68
68

20
20

194
0
196
2,741
62
3
366
3,561

Quarter 1 April to June 2021/22
Current
Actuals to
Variance to
Budget
Date
Date

Original
Budget

2021/22
Current
Budget

Outturn

Variance

287
8
(1)
20
(3)
311

(14,875)
(233)
(1)
(1,061)
0
(16,170)

(14,875)
(233)
(1)
(1,061)
0
(16,170)

(14,905)
(233)
(1)
(1,068)
(3)
(16,211)

(30)
0
0
(7)
(3)
(40)

102
102

82
82

80
80

80
80

80
80

0
0

56
843
1
0
3
0
12
915

17
0
0
26
12
1
8
65

(39)
(843)
(0)
26
9
1
(5)
(850)

224
0
200
2,626
61
0
436
3,547

224
3,370
2
0
13
0
49
3,659

224
3,370
2
26
13
0
50
3,686

0
0
0
26
0
0
1
27

470
650
1,119

134
136
270

126
116
242

(8)
(20)
(28)

536
658
1,194

536
546
1,082

501
526
1,027

(35)
(19)
(55)

Total Service Expenditure

4,749

1,205

408

(797)

4,821

4,821

4,792

(28)

Corporate Costs
Bad Debt Provision
Depreciation - Dwellings (to MRR)
Depreciation - Non-Dwellings (to MRR)
Interest / Costs - HRA Loan
Repayment of Loan
Investment Income
Uttlesford Norse Partnership Profit Share
Recharge from General Fund
HRA Share of Corporate Core
Pension Fund - Added Years
Pension Fund - Deficit
Right to Buy Admin Cost Allowance
Total Corporate Costs

113
3,881
0
2,584
0
0
(66)
1,310
405
18
128
(10)
8,362

100
4,230
51
2,601
2,000
(2)
0
1,167
385
0
0
(10)
10,523

100
4,230
51
2,601
2,000
(2)
0
1,167
385
0
0
(10)
10,523

100
4,230
51
2,601
2,000
(2)
0
1,167
385
0
0
(10)
10,523

0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

TOTAL EXPENDITURE

13,111

15,344

15,344

15,315

(28)

OPERATING (SURPLUS)/DEFICIT

(3,028)

(827)

(827)

(895)

(69)

0

0

0

0

0

952
952

650
650

3,235
3,235

3,484
3,484

249
249

897
(100)
(302)
1,650
0
(43)
2,102
3,054

216
0
0
0
0
0
(40)
177
827

216
0
0
(2,585)
0
0
(40)
(2,408)
827

(33)
0
0
(2,585)
0
0
50
(2,568)
916

(249)
0
0
0
0
0
89
(160)
89

26

0

0

19

19

Housing Finance & Business Management
Rents, Rates & Other Property Charges
Housing Maintenance & Repairs Services
Common Service Flats
Uttlesford Norse Partnership
Estate Maintenance
Housing Repairs
Housing Sewerage
Newport Depot
Property Services
Housing Management & Homelessness
Housing Services
Sheltered Housing Services

Funding from Capital Receipts Reserve for HRA Loan
Funding of Capital Programme from HRA
Funding of Capital from Revenue
Transfers to/from (-) Reserves
Capital Projects Reserve
Potential Developments (New Builds)
Sheltered Housing Reserve
HRA Capital Slippage Reserve
Revenue Projects
Transformation Reserve
Working Balance
Total Use of Reserve / Funding

(SURPLUS)/DEFICIT

Page 30

Appendix E
Housing Revenue Account Reserves

Forecast transfer
from HRA

Forecast Transfer
to HRA

471
471

50
50

0

0
0

521
521

180
60
240

0
0
0

0

0
0
0

180
60
240

910
110
0
2,650
3,670

216
0
0
0
216

(2,585)
(2,834)

0
0
0
0
0

877
110
0
65
1,052

TOTAL USABLE RESERVES

3,910

216

(2,834)

0

1,292

TOTAL RESERVES

4,381

266

(2,834)

0

1,813

Reserve
£'000
RINGFENCED RESERVES
Working Balance
USABLE RESERVES
Revenue Reserves
Transformation / Change Management
Revenue Projects
Capital Reserves
Capital Projects
Potential Development Projects
Sheltered Housing Projects
HRA Slippage Reserve

Reserve with conditions
£'000
Capital Receipt Reserve - RTB
Capital Receipt Reserve - Other
Capital Receipt Reserve - Total

Actual Balance
1st April 2021

Actual Balance

Transfer between
Estimated Balance
Reserves
31st March 2022

(249)

Forecast transfer Forecast Transfer to
from HRA
HRA

1st April 2021
2,157
29
2,186

Page 31

Estimated Balance
31st March 2021

1,600
0
1,600

(2,199)
0
(2,199)

1,558
29
1,587

Appendix F
Capital Programme expenditure
Scheme

Commercial Investments

ORIGINAL BUDGET
2021/22
£'000

SLIPPAGE FROM CURRENT BUDGET
2020/21
2021/22
£'000
£'000

FORECAST
OUTTURN
£'000

FORECAST
VARIANCE
£'000

SLIPPAGE
REQUESTED

Page 32

500

0

500

111,524

111,024

0

Community and Partnerships
Environmental Services
Finance and Administration
Housing and Economic Development
Total General Fund

110
190
1,745
280
2,325

60
1,634
772
701
3,167

170
1,824
2,517
981
5,492

170
2,007
4,574
443
7,194

0
183
2,057
(538)
1,702

0
0
0
573
573

Housing Revenue Account

5,595

4,358

9,953

9,805

(148)

0

TOTAL CAPITAL PROGRAMME

8,420

7,525

15,945

128,523

112,578

573

Capital Programme financing
INVESTMENTS

GENERAL FUND

HOUSING REVENUE ACCOUNT

£'000

£'000

£'000

109,814
0
1,710
0
0
0
0
0
111,524

0
266
780
5,133
745
0
270
0
7,194

0
342
899
0
2,585
0
1,775
4,204
9,805

FINANCING SUMMARY 2020/21

Borrowing
Grants and Contributions
Revenue Contribution (RCCO)
Internal Borrowing
Reserves
S106
Capital Receipts
Major Repairs Reserve

Total Financing

128,523

Appendix F continued…
Capital Programme Investment Properties

SCHEME

COST CENTRE

REQUESTED
SLIPPAGE TO
2022/23

ACTUAL TO JUNE

ORIGINAL BUDGET
2021/22

SLIPPAGE FROM
2020/21

VIREMENTS

CURRENT BUDGET
2021/22

FORECAST

FORECAST TO
BUDGET VARIANCE

0
0
0
0
2,327
3,854
0

500
0
0
0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0
0
0
0

500
0
0
0
0
0
0

0
0
21,637
0
36,251
18,426
35,210

(500)
0
21,637
0
36,251
18,426
35,210

6,182

500

0

0

500

111,524

111,024

0

ACTUAL TO JUNE

ORIGINAL BUDGET
2021/22

SLIPPAGE FROM
2020/21

VIREMENTS

CURRENT BUDGET
2021/22

FORECAST

FORECAST TO
BUDGET VARIANCE

REQUESTED
SLIPPAGE TO
2022/23

18
0

110
0

53
7

163
7

163
7

0
0

18

110

60

170

170

0

0
32
13
4
11
0
8
55

0
70
30
10
20
0
15
45

25
0
0
0
0
92
0
1,517

25
70
30
10
20
92
15
1,562

25
70
30
10
20
92
15
1,745

0
0
0
0
0
0
0
183

123

190

1,634

1,824

2,007

183

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Skyway House
Deer Park Road
Stane Retail Park Phase 1
Waitrose Distribution Centre
Amazon, Gloucester
MOOG
Stane Retail Park Phase 2

CIN001/6826
CIN002/6826
CIN003/6826
CIN004/6826
CIN005/6826
CIN006/6826

Page 33

Capital Programme General Fund

SCHEME

COST CENTRE

GENERAL FUND
COMMUNITY AND PARTNERSHIPS

Community Project Grants
Tree Planting

CGF502/6842
CGF533/6841

TOTAL COMMUNITY AND PARTNERSHIPS

0

0

ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES

White Street Car Park
Household Bins
Trade Waste Bins
Kitchen Caddies
Garden Waste Bins
Car Parking Machine Replacement
Electic Car Charges
Vehicle Replacement Programme
TOTAL ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES

CGF108/6801
CGF300/6822
CGF301/6822
CGF304/6822
CGF308/6822
CGF321/6822
CGF323/6822
CGF602/6823

0

0

Appendix F continued…
Capital Programme General Fund

SCHEME

COST CENTRE

ACTUAL TO JUNE

ORIGINAL BUDGET
2021/22

SLIPPAGE FROM
2020/21

REQUESTED
SLIPPAGE TO
2022/23

CURRENT BUDGET
2021/22

FORECAST

FORECAST TO
BUDGET VARIANCE

40
20
54
88
30
72
43
5
16
12
27
30
30
50
20
0
40
400
18
0

40
20
54
88
30
72
43
5
16
24
27
30
30
50
20
0
40
400
18
10

0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
12
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
10

(45)

1,000
199
240
0
0
34
0
50
0

3,034
199
240
0
0
34
0
50
0

2,034
1
0
0
0
1
0
0
0

0

2,517

4,574

2,057

0

137
224
20
600

137
259
20
27

0
35
0
(573)

573

981

443

(538)

573

VIREMENTS

FINANCE AND ADMINISTRATION

Page 34

Minor Items IT
Revenues and Benefits IT
PCI Compliance
PSN CoCo Works
Asset Management System
Cyber Security
Grounds Maint & Vehicle System
Idox Additional Modules
Licensing - Lalpac to Idox Uni
ArcGIS Upgrade
Postal Software
Scanner Replacement
Sharepoint
Wifi
Northgate Housing Assets
Telephony System (8x8)
Corporate Mobile Refresh - Cap Pur IT
ICT - New Sites - Cap Pur IT
Web-to-Print Solutions - Cap Pur IT
Appoitment Reservation

CGF401/6834
CGF410/6834
CGF413/6834
CGF425/6824
CGF437/6824
CGF438/6824
CGF439/6824
CGF441/6824
CGF442/6824
CGF443/6824
CGF446/6824
CGF447/6824
CGF448/6824
CGF449/6824
CGF450/6824
CGF451/6824
CGF452/6824
CGF453/6824
CGF454/6824
CGF455/6824

16
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
10
0
0
0
0
0
2
0
0
0
0

20
0
20
30
0
20
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
40
400
18
0

20
20
34
58
30
52
43
5
16
12
27
30
30
50
20
0
0
0
0
0

New Depot Site
London Rd Office Building works
Swan Meadow Car Park Resurface
Day Centres Cyclical Improvements
Museum Fire Alarm
Museum Boiler
London Rd Office Electrical
London Road - Fire Alarm Upgrade
London Road - LED Lighting

CGF110/6801
CGF112/6801

1,713
0

CGF115/6801
CGF129/6801
CGF130/6801
CGF316/6822
CGF127/6801
CGF128/6801

0
0
0
0
0
0

1,000
120
0
25
20
32
0
0
0

0
195
0
25
0
0
10
50
45

1,739

1,745

772

0
2
0
0

70
200
10
0

67
24
10
600

2

280

701

TOTAL FINANCE AND ADMINISTRATION

(117)
240
(50)
(20)
2
(10)

HOUSING AND ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT

Private Sector Renewal Grant
Disabled facilities Grant
Empty Dwellings
Superfast Broadband
TOTAL HOUSING AND ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT

CGF500/6841
CGF503/6841
CGF505/6841
CGF528/6841

0

Appendix F continued…
Capital Programme Housing Revenue Account

SCHEME

COST CENTRE

ACTUAL TO JUNE

ORIGINAL BUDGET
2021/22

SLIPPAGE FROM
2020/21

CURRENT BUDGET
2021/22

FORECAST

FORECAST TO
BUDGET VARIANCE

0

50

0

50

50

0

0

50

0

50

50

0

20
21
198
317
0
0
112
0

0
0
0
1,350
650
0
0
0

0
0
877
2,110
819
0
0
0

0
0
877
3,460
1,469
0
0
0

20
21
877
3,460
1,469
0
200
0

20
21
0
0
0
0
200
0

667

2,000

3,806

5,806

6,047

241

0
18
0
31
55

0
0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0
0

0
18
0
31
55

0
18
0
31
55

104

0

0

0

0

104

104

4
0
0
0

3,445
100
0
0

497
0
0
55

0

3,942
100
0
55

3,465
84
0
55

(477)
(16)
0
0

4

3,545

552

0

4,097

3,604

(493)

VIREMENTS

REQUESTED
SLIPPAGE TO
2022/23

HOUSING REVENUE ACCOUNT

Cash Incentive Scheme Grants

CHR500/6841

TOTAL

0

0

RTB SCHEMES

Page 35

Newton Grove
Frambury Lane
The Moors
Thaxted Road
Great Chesterford
Auton Court
Gold Close
White Roding

CHR113/6801
CHR114/6801
CHR116/6801
CHR119/6801
CHR118/6801
CHR122/6801
CHR123/6801
CHR124/6801

TOTAL RTB SCHEMES

0

0

SHELTERED SCHEMES

Reynolds Court
Hatherley Court
Walden Place
Alexia House
Parkside

CHR107/6801
CHR108/6801
CHR109/6801
CHR121/6801
CHR120/6801

TOTAL SHELTERED SCHEMES

0

HRA - UTTLESFORD NORSE

HRA Repairs
UPVC Fascia's and Guttering
Resurfacing Access Road
Lift Replacement
TOTAL UTTLESFORD NORSE

Various
CHR223/6812
CHR111/6801
CHR224/6812

0

Appendix F continued…
Section 106
SECTION 106 BALANCES
With Conditions
S106 Receipts in Advance
Priors Green, Takeley
Land north of Ingrams, Felsted
Rochford Nurseries/Foresthall Park, Stansted
The Orchard, Elsenham
Wedow Road, Thaxted
Sector 4 Woodlands Park, Gt Dunmow
Keers Green Nurseries, Aythorpe Roding
Land adjacent to S/W Hospital
Land at Blossom Hill Farm, Henham
Land at Webb & Hallett Road, Flitch Green, Felsted
Land south side of Radwinter Road
Total

Other Bodies
S106 Receipts in Advance
Sector 4 Woodlands Park (Helena Romanes School)
Brewers End, Takeley
Land adj Hailes Wood, Elsenham
Land at Flitch Green, Felsted
Land adjacent to S/W Hospital
Ashdon Road Commercial Centre
Land south of Stansted Road, Elsenham
Land south of Ongar Road, Dunmow
Land at 119 Radwinter Road, adj S/W Hospital
Land North of Ongar Road, Gt Dunmow
Land at Bury Water Lane, Newport
Land at Elsenham Nuseries
Bury Water Lane, Newport
Walpole Farm, Cambridge Road, Stansted
14 Stortford Road, Gt Dunmow
Land west of Woodside Way, Gt Dunmow
Grants and Contributions to Other Bodies
Without Conditions

S106 Unapplied
Affordable Housing;
Drawn Down
Affordable Housing
Dunmow Eastern Sector
Woodlands Park, Gt Dunmow
Bell College, Saffron Walden
Priors Green, Takeley
Foresthall Park, Stansted
Lt Walden Road/Ashdon Road, Saffron Walden
Oakwood Park, Takeley
Total

£'000

Drawn Down Capital
£'000

Balance at 30 Jun
2021
£'000

-

-

-

78
10
20
42
53
10
120
31
33
33
49
479

31 March 2021

Income

Adjustment

£'000

£'000

£'000

Transferred to
other bodies
£'000

Balance at 30 Jun
2021
£'000

165
31
10
67
1
34
53
17
15
21
29
14
26
53
35
571

-

-

-

264
264

-

-

165
31
10
67
1
34
53
17
15
21
29
14
26
53
35
264
835

31 March 202021

Income

Adjustment

£'000

£'000

£'000

Drawn Down Capital
£'000

Balance at 30 Jun
2021
£'000

813
813
18
36
15
8
33
98
5
1,026

-

-

-

813
813
18
36
15
8
33
98
5
1,026

31 March 2021

Income

Adjustment

£'000

£'000

78
10
20
42
53
10
120
31
33
33
49
479

Page 36

Appendix G
Investments April – June 2021
Date of
Investment

Counterparty

06-Apr-21
08-Apr-21
12-Apr-21
13-Apr-21
15-Apr-21
20-Apr-21
20-Apr-21
26-Apr-21
29-Apr-21
21-May-21
17-May-21
11-Jun-21
15-Jun-21

DMO
DMO
DMO
DMO
DMO
Cornwall Council
DMO
DMO
DMO
Ashford Borough Council
DMO
Thurrock Borough Council
DMO

Amount (£)

Date of
Repayment

Interest
Rate %

08-Apr-21
12-Apr-21
15-Apr-21
19-Apr-21
20-Apr-21
20-Oct-21
26-Apr-21
29-Apr-21
04-May-21
22-Nov-21
20-May-21
10-Jun-22
17-Jun-21

0.01%
0.01%
0.01%
0.01%
0.01%
0.04%
0.01%
0.01%
0.01%
0.04%
0.01%
0.20%
0.02%

6,500,000
2,800,000
2,600,000
1,500,000
5,400,000
3,000,000
2,200,000
3,000,000
2,100,000
3,000,000
2,600,000
2,000,000
5,000,000

Average interest rate

0.03%

Money Market Funds
Opening
Balance (£)
01/04/2021

Fund Name
Aberdeen Standard Liquidity Fund (Lux) - Sterling Fund
Aviva Investors Sterling Liquidity Fund
CCLA - The Public Sector Deposit Fund
Federated Short-Term Sterling Prime Fund
Invesco Sterling Liquidity Portfolio (Institutional)

500,000
400,000
1,050,000
500,000
500,000

Closing
Average
Balance (£) No. of days
1 day
30/06/2021
invested
yield
1,300,000
950,000
1,250,000
900,000
900,000

91
90
91
91
90

0.01%
0.01%
0.03%
0.01%
0.01%

Borrowing April – June 2021

Date of
borrowing

Institution

21-Apr-21
21-Apr-21
30-Apr-21
30-Apr-21
20-Apr-21
17-Jun-21
21-Jun-21

Hampshire County Council
Devon County Council
London Borough of Newham
Brighton & Hove City Council
West Yorkshire Combined Authority
Newport City Council
Middlesbrough Council

Amount (£)

Average interest rate

3,000,000
2,500,000
5,000,000
4,000,000
3,500,000
2,000,000
3,000,000

Date of Interest
Repayment Rate %
20-Apr-22
20-Apr-22
29-Apr-22
29-Apr-22
12-Apr-22
01-Jul-21
01-Jul-21

0.13%
0.13%
0.13%
0.13%
0.12%
0.02%
0.02%
0.10%

Page 37

Agenda Item 9
Committee:

Cabinet

Date:

Title:

Report of the review of the planning service

Tuesday, 19
October 2021

Portfolio
Holder:

Councillor John Evans,

Report
Author:

Peter Holt, Chief Executive

Key Decision:

pholt@uttlesford.gov.uk

No

Portfolio Holder for Planning and the Local
Plan

Summary
1. The Council commissioned a review of the planning service in 2020 from the
East of England LGA. This work was addressed in three strands, the first two
addressing the preparations for the development of a local plan. The third
strand effectively addressed the Council’s development management service.
This report relates to the third strand review and its subsequent report. The
review of the development management service was undertaken by two
Associates of the East of England LGA in late 2020 and early 2021.
2. The finalised report on the development management service has now been
received from the East of England LGA and accompanies this report.
3. The Scrutiny Committee considered the matter at the meeting on Thursday, 7
October. During the Chair’s summary of the discussion, he said it was
important that residents received the best possible service in the future, and
there needed to be clarity on who would take responsibility for the delivery of
the service. There also needed to be an understanding of how the
recommendations would be implemented.
4. At the meeting, Councillor Evans agreed to provide a brief implementation
plan at the November Scrutiny Committee that set out levels of responsibility
and included estimated timelines. He also agreed that a more comprehensive
plan would be produced in time for the Scrutiny meeting in February.
Recommendation
5. Cabinet is recommended to
a. receive and consider the report, together with any comments or
recommendations from the Scrutiny Committee;
b. note the improvement actions implemented to date;
c. approve the recommendations of the report, as amended if agreed
under (a) above, for implementation towards an improved planning
management service;

Page 38

d. acknowledge the recommendations directed to the Cabinet and its
Executive Members and requests the Chief Executive and the Leader
to bring forward proposals to address these recommendations;
e. consider any consequential resource implications as part of
consideration of the Council budget for 2022-23;
f. require a progress report to Cabinet on implementation of the
recommendations no later than six months from this meeting; and
g. refer the report to the Planning Committee for its information and
consideration.
Financial Implications
6. The report makes a number of recommendations which may have financial
implications for future budgets. In setting the budget for 2021-22 the Council
agreed growth of £240,000 for the planning service and £140,000 for the legal
service in order to facilitate implementation of any recommendations arising
from the review.
Background
7. In early 2020 the Council invited the East of England LGA to carry out two
peer reviews into planning functions. The first review provided advice
regarding the inspector’s letter concerning the stage 1 hearings into the
submitted local plan. This advice informed the Council’s decision, in April
2020, to withdraw the plan.
8. The second peer review comprised three strands. The first strand focussed on
providing advice to help the Council make the best possible operational start
for the drafting of a new local plan. The second strand provided support to
ensure that the programme, processes, resources and support were identified
and put into place to allow the achievement of a sound local plan in a timely
manner. Both of these strands were delivered by early 2021 and the
preparation of the local plan is progressing well, as outlined later.
9. The third strand of this peer review was entitled “Local Planning Authority
Strategy and Operational Development Plan” but essentially addressed how to
improve the development management service. This piece of work was
eventually undertaken in late 2020 and early 2021. The finalisation of the
report arising from this study has taken a considerable time to be finalised and
is the principal subject of this report. The report from the East of England LGA
is attached.
10. The review was undertaken by two Associates from the East of England LGA,
Malcolm Sharp and Simon Smith. The Associates undertook desk top reviews
of resources, performance and previous reviews of the service before
engaging with staff, Members and stakeholders. The report and response to a
previous review, in 2018, of the planning service particularly informed this
review. That earlier review, by the Planning Officers Society, would seem to

Page 39

have had little impact on the development management service and, as a
result, it is the more important that Members and officers endorse and ensure
that the recommendations in this report are acted upon.
11. The review concludes that the development management service is
“underperforming”, in a worse position than reported in the 2018 review, at risk
of “designation” under Ministry criteria, with a staff complement which has a
lower base of expertise and experience than before and under pressure, and
with issues of appropriate leadership. The report compares its findings with
those of 2018 and highlights a range of practical, process, actions that need to
be instigated.
12. The review contains considerable focus upon the level of resources available,
and needed, to deliver a sound development management service. It focusses
heavily on the growth bid submitted by service managers as part of the
Council’s budget setting for the 2021-22 financial year. There is a risk of overemphasis and over-reliance on additional resources resolving the challenges
facing the service and distracting from what also needs to be addressed in
terms of process redesign, appropriate leadership and guidance, and
enhanced Member engagement and behaviours. Despite the Council building
considerable growth into the 2021-22 budget for planning, the expectation and
reliance which seems to have developed amongst some staff around the large
growth bid, and it not being fully delivered, feels like it became an excuse for
lack of improvement.
13. The report also highlights the role of Members as part of development
management, and the impact of adopted behaviours. The development
management service provided by the Council is a partnership between officers
and Members and the report and its recommendations reflects this position.
Whilst the Council has a good scheme of delegation for managing planning
applications the number of applications referred to committee for decision and
the number of applications refused against officer recommendations are high
compared to like authorities. The report contains four clear recommendations
directed to Members.
The Report and its recommendations
14. The report contains eight recommendations aimed at helping improve the
development management service. These recommendations are, for ease,
contained in Appendix 1 of the East of England LGA report and are listed in
three distinct groups, those for the Council’s leadership (the Chief Executive,
directors and Administration), those specifically for elected Members to adopt,
and one comprehensive recommendation addressing the process. If the
Council is to make headway in improving its development management it is
imperative that it embraces and ensures delivery on all eight
recommendations.
Actions so far
15. The preparation of a new local plan is well underway, as report to Members
have illustrated, and this has been influenced by the work of the review team

Page 40

through the early work strands. During the time with the Council the review
team attended and array of meetings and Member briefings, influencing and
helping embed a range of sound working practices, including the creation of
the Local Plan Leadership Group (LPLG) which is aiding the delivery of an
ambitious work programme. Arrangements are operating to ensure
appropriate engagement, a Strategic Infrastructure Delivery Group, a draft
Vision and Objectives and Preliminary Outline Strategy for the emerging Local
Plan, with climate change at its heart, and as part of a partnership approach,
the model Memorandum of Understanding for landowners and developers
which was considered at the September meeting of Cabinet.
16. Work on improvements to the development management service has been
taking place in advance of the final report from the review, albeit informed by
earlier drafts. As part of a separate review, as well as recommendations
contained in this report, a task group on a new approach to legal agreements
(s106 agreements) has been instigated. An Interim Planning Transformation
Lead Officer has been appointed and has been in post since mid August,
working with the planning teams and driving new ways of operating and
improvements. These actions have included, so far, a redesigned report to
the Planning Committee on applications with a pilot beginning in late October,
work to better use and publish performance statistics, the recruitment of two
principal planning officers to augment our capacity to deal with major
applications, and the recruitment of specialist planning lawyers, these
recruitments facilitated by the approved growth in the 2021-22 budget. The
two principal planner posts will, in turn, allow the two team leaders to provide
greater leadership, support and management of the planning staff and their
caseloads. The retirement of the Assistant Director for Planning and the
imminent retirement of the Director of Public Services will also allow the new
chief executive to consider the most appropriate organisational structure and
leadership to meet future needs and pressures.
Commentary
17. If this review, and its recommendations, are to have the most impact it will be
important that the Council, its Members and officers, recognise it as reflecting
a point in time and focus on how best to use the recommendations to deliver a
fit for purpose planning service for the future. The planning system comprises
a partnership between officers and Members and the report contains
recommended actions from planning officers, the corporate leadership and
from Members. All need to be addressed to make a lasting difference. Some
additional resource is likely to be required but additional resources alone will
not provide the improvements needed. There are undoubtedly improvements
to be achieved in the processes in place to manage applications and
compliance, but also, as or more importantly, in behaviours, in leadership, in
support and in mutual trust.
Impact
18. The principal impacts arising from this report, if the recommendations are
implemented, will be enhanced service delivery for applicants and other
citizens, improved organisational reputation, and a more balanced workload,

Page 41

enhanced working environment and reduced work-related stress and pressure
for staff.
Recommendation
19. The Cabinet is recommended to consider the report of the planning review,
along with any comments or recommendations from the Scrutiny Committee,
and to agree the detailed recommendations contained in paragraph 3 of this
report.
Risk Analysis
20.
Risk

Likelihood

Impact

That the
recommendations
from the report
are not adopted
and implemented

1

4

Mitigating actions


Interim
planning
transformation
lead officer in
place and
already driving
improvement



New principal
planning posts
being recruited
and team
leader post
being filled
permanently



Revised s106
policy in place

1 = Little or no risk or impact
2 = Some risk or impact – action may be necessary.
3 = Significant risk or impact – action required
4 = Near certainty of risk occurring, catastrophic effect or failure of project.

Page 42

Uttlesford District Council
Local Planning Authority Peer Review

Fit for Purpose Local Planning Authority and
Development Management Improvement Plan
August 2021

Page 43

Table of Contents
1. Executive summary and recommendations .................................................... 5
1.1

Introduction ........................................................................................................... 5

1.2.

LPA Transformation Strategy .............................................................................. 5

1.3.

Corporate Context ................................................................................................ 5

1.4.

Institutional Context ............................................................................................. 6

1.5.

Financial Context .................................................................................................. 7

1.6.

Recommendations ................................................................................................ 7

Recommendation 1 - All Councillors and Members of the Planning Committee ........ 8
Recommendation 2 - All Councillors ............................................................................ 8
Recommendation 3 - All Councillors ............................................................................. 8
Recommendation 4 - Members of the Planning Committee ......................................... 8
Recommendation 5 – Service Leadership ..................................................................... 8
Recommendation 6 - Political Leadership and Corporate Management Board (CMB)8
Recommendation 7 - Chief Executive and Council ....................................................... 9
Recommendation 8 - Chief Executive ............................................................................ 9

2. Review background ........................................................................................... 9
Corporate Plan and Policy Context .............................................................................. 11

3. Institutional Context........................................................................................... 11
Vision and Creating Public Value: Leader and Cabinet .............................................. 13
Vision and Creating Public Value: Corporate Management Team ............................. 13
Rules: Leader and Cabinet ........................................................................................... 13
Rules: Corporate Management Team........................................................................... 13
Standard Operating Procedures: Leader and Cabinet ................................................ 14
Standard Operating Procedures: Corporate Management Team ............................... 14
Compliance Procedures: Leader and Cabinet............................................................. 14
Compliance Procedures: Corporate Management Team ............................................ 14
Cultural Norms: Leader and Cabinet............................................................................ 15
Cultural Norms: Corporate Management Team ........................................................... 15

4. Development Management Service and POS Enterprise Review (2018) ...... 16
The Development Management service ....................................................................... 16
Review method .............................................................................................................. 16
The POSE review 2018 .................................................................................................. 17
Performance management............................................................................................ 17
POSE 2018 Review: What good looks like ................................................................... 19

Page 44

2

5. Summary of Findings........................................................................................ 19
Staff Competencies: Development Management Applications .................................. 21
Staff Competencies: Appeal Types .............................................................................. 21
Local Plan Making and Delivery ................................................................................... 22
Development Management ........................................................................................... 23
Resources ...................................................................................................................... 25

6. MEMBER GOVERNANCE OF THE LPA ............................................................ 25
The Member Development Management Pathway ...................................................... 26
Member and Officer Relationships ................................................................................................ 26
Member understanding of the Planning System and their roles ................................................... 27
Place Making and Pre-Application Discussions for Development Management .......................... 28
Development Management Delegation Scheme .......................................................................... 28
Call in protocol............................................................................................................................... 29
Planning Committee Matters ......................................................................................................... 30
Pre-Committee Briefing ................................................................................................................. 30
Planning Committee Meeting ........................................................................................................ 30

7. Development Management – Operational Transformation Plan ................... 32
The Customer Interface and Enquiry Pathway ............................................................ 33
The Place Making Pathway ........................................................................................... 34
Development Management Pathway ............................................................................ 35
S106 Agreements Pathway ........................................................................................... 36
The Enforcement Pathway ............................................................................................ 38
Governance steps ......................................................................................................................... 38
Prevention ..................................................................................................................................... 39
Interventions .................................................................................................................................. 39
Enforcement .................................................................................................................................. 39

8. Strategic Interventions and Resources ........................................................... 39
LPA Transformation strategy ....................................................................................... 40
Transformative governance .......................................................................................................... 40
Performance management............................................................................................................ 40

Resources ...................................................................................................................... 41
Leadership ..................................................................................................................... 43

APPENDIX 1 – Recommendations and Actions................................................... 45
A. Recommendations and actions for council leadership ......................................... 45
Recommendation 6: Political Leadership and Corporate Management Board (CMB) ................. 45
Recommendation 7 - Chief Executive and Council....................................................................... 46
Recommendation 8 - Chief Executive ........................................................................................... 46

B. Recommendation to improve the Development Management process .............. 47
Recommendation 5 – Reinvigorating the Service ......................................................................... 47
The Customer Interface and Enquiry Pathway ......................................................................... 47
The Place Making Pathway....................................................................................................... 47
Development Management Pathway ........................................................................................ 48
Section 106 Pathway ................................................................................................................ 48
Enforcement Pathway ............................................................................................................... 48

Page 45

3

C. Recommendations for actions by Members ......................................................... 49
The context for Members .............................................................................................................. 49
Recommendation 1 - All Councillors and Members of the Planning Committee .......................... 49
Recommendation 2 - All Councillors ............................................................................................. 49
Recommendation 3 - All Councillors ............................................................................................ 50
Recommendation 4 - Members of the Planning Committee ........................................................ 50

APPENDIX 2 – Officer Growth Bid for 2021-22 & Approved Budget for 2021-22
................................................................................................................................. 51

Page 46

4

1.

Executive summary and recommendations

1.1

Introduction

The East of England Local Government Association (EELGA) was appointed by Uttlesford District
Council to undertake a peer review of the Council as the Local Planning Authority (LPA). The
assignment was undertaken by EELGA Associates Malcolm Sharp and Simon Smith.
The brief was to formulate a strategy and operational development plan to ensure the LPA is fit for
the purpose of fulfilling its statutory and regulatory obligations plus delivering against the vision and
objectives of Uttlesford’s Corporate Plan. The focus of this report is on the Development
Management part of the Planning Service, but the report also makes reference to other aspects of
the Council acting as a local planning authority.
The Planning Service is widely acknowledged to be an underperforming service. This is demonstrated
in terms of planning policy activities through two failed Local Plans, and in terms of Development
Management activities through the quality of development outcomes and bottom quartile
performance against the Government’s three key performance indicators.
From this baseline, achieving the Corporate Plan goal to ‘deliver an outstanding planning and placemaking capability with the right capacity to create quality outcomes with and for all our
communities’ will require significant transformative change.

1.2.

LPA Transformation Strategy

The strategic interventions outlined in the report are focussed on assisting Uttlesford to:
•
•

Develop an LPA governance regime that is fit for purpose
Create an outstanding planning and place-making capability with the right capacity and
leadership to deliver quality outcomes with and for the district’s communities,

and apply this regime to
•
•

Reorientate the Council as an LPA from reactive planning to proactive, positive planning
activities - for better place making
Achieve ‘better than policy’ development outcomes.

A strong combination of member and officer leadership will be key to delivering this strategy.
Therefore, the Council will need to address gaps in the member and officer governance regimes.

1.3.

Corporate Context

Elected in May 2019, the new administration has a mandate to fulfil its election pledges and
Corporate Plan vision of ‘Making Uttlesford the best place to live, work and play.’
There are four strategic objectives:
•
•
•

Putting residents first
Active place-maker for our towns and villages
Progressive custodian of our rural environment

Page 47

5

•

Championing our district.

In addition, there is a cross-party desire to see a fully functioning planning service.
As Local Plan maker, the Council committed in the Corporate Plan to:
•
•

•
•

Increase the voice and influence of residents in planning and other Council matters
Fix the Local Plan so it is evidence-led, puts infrastructure before new homes, is
controlled by local communities and not developers, and provides homes that are
affordable for local people,
Make sure the scale of development closely relates to the identified housing need, and
that the Local Plan satisfies the Planning Inspectorate,
Under the Local Plan new housing will be built in the locations that the evidence shows
are the most sustainable.

As proactive place maker, the Council also committed in the Corporate Plan to:
•
•
•
•
•
•

Focus on strategic master planning in partnership with towns and villages to create
better resident centred places to live
Encourage positive planning that values and protects our heritage
Implement policies which create better (low carbon) homes and neighbourhoods that
meet or exceed national standards
Implement a Community Infrastructure Levy along with S106 to deliver strategic
community projects and greater local benefits from development
Increase the number of affordable homes delivered and different tenure options
including social renting
Meet or exceed national standards for open and green spaces

To fulfil these commitments, the Council commissioned this review to ensure the LPA is:
•
•
•

Fit for the purpose of serving current and future generations - by preparing a timely and
sound Local Plan in accordance with its obligations
Making defensible planning decisions
Realising the vision and strategic objectives of the Uttlesford Corporate Plan

The output of the review sets out an LPA transformation strategy and operations plan
A pre-condition of success is that all Members, (whether political leaders, opposition leaders, or
members with and without roles in plan-making and development management), plus all LPA
officers, are equally committed to delivering the strategy and plan.

1.4.

Institutional Context

The Council has an ambition to ensure its role as the LPA is fit for the purpose of serving current and
future generations by preparing a timely and sound Local Plan in accordance with its obligations,
making defensible planning decisions, and realising its Corporate Plan vision and objectives. These
are respectively to make Uttlesford the best place to live, work and play and be an ‘active placemaker for our towns and villages.’
The Planning Service is widely acknowledged to be an underperforming service. This is reflected on
the planning policy side through two failed Local Plans, as mentioned above, and on the

Page 48

6

Development Management side through bottom quartile performance against the Government’s
three Key Performance Indicators for timely and quality of decision making and the quality of
development outcomes.
From this baseline, the Corporate Plan goal to ‘deliver an outstanding planning and place-making
capability with the right capacity to create quality outcomes with and for all our communities’ will
require significant commitment to transformation, including capacity and capability assessment.
Previous reviews have focussed on specific parts of the planning service. They have mainly identified
symptoms, as opposed to diagnosing causes, and made prescriptions at the operational level. The
prescriptions have not been universally implemented due in part to lack of new resources and
managerial and staff ownership.
The failure to act on the recommendations of previous reviews demonstrates that transformational
change sought by the Council requires LPA wide ownership of recommendations, effective
allocations and utilisation of Member, staff, and stakeholders’ resources with focussed political and
corporate management leadership.
The EELGA peer review has been able to provide a comprehensive review of the LPA as a whole and
the elements within it. This has enabled the review to diagnose the institutional context and
operational practices and identify links between them.
This, together with deliberative discussions with LPA staff, has informed and built ownership of
recommendations to address the root causes of underperformance and promote continuous service
improvement.

1.5.

Financial Context

Full details of the financial context are shown in Appendix 2 – Officer Growth Bid for
2021/2022 and Approved Budget for 2021-22.

1.6.

Recommendations

Eight recommendations are made within this review, the most important is considered to be
Recommendation 6 regarding Political Leadership and Corporate Management Board.
The recommendations reflect the findings of the review which are set out in detail within the
report and each recommendation signposts to the relevant report section for ease of
reference.
The strategic interventions and recommendations are grouped to reflect the key areas for
improvement, under three core themes
A. Recommendations for council leadership
B. Recommendations to improve the Development Management process
C. Recommendations for action by Members
Appendix 1 outlines the eight recommendations and required actions

Page 49

7

The recommendations in the report are:

Recommendation 1 - All Councillors and Members of the Planning Committee
•
•

All Member training to build an understanding of the mutual benefits of good Member and
officer relationships and the Code of Conduct
Before sitting on the Planning Committee, Members need to undertake mandatory training
on planning matters and attend annual refresher courses. Members need to be encouraged
to read the National Planning Policy Framework and observe a nationally recognised best
practice LPA Planning Committee at work.

Recommendation 2 - All Councillors
•
•

To ensure the Council has a best practice Development Management Delegation Scheme
and protocol for Member involvement in pre-application processes
o see sections 6.14 – 6.17 of the main report
To ensure all Members receive training in the to be updated delegation scheme, and preapplication processes

Recommendation 3 - All Councillors
•
•

To update the call-in protocol to include a gateway process based on material planning
considerations to ensure the Planning Committee’s time is used effectively
o see sections 6.18 – 6.20 of the main report
To ensure all Members receive training in the updated call-in process

Recommendation 4 - Members of the Planning Committee
•

To review Planning Committee procedures, timing, and practices
o see sections 6.21 – 6.28 of the main report

Recommendation 5 – Service Leadership
•
•
•

The service will require reinvigorated, effective leadership and direction to deliver an
operational development plan.
This will require establishing new service operating procedures and practices exemplified as
service pathways in accordance with a detailed action plan and programme.
The pathways are detailed in the report as:
o Customer interface and enquiry pathway (section 7.2)
o Place making pathway (section 7.6)
o Development Management pathway (section 7.10)
o S106 Agreement pathway (section 7.11)
o Enforcement pathway (section 7.13)
o Member development management pathway (section 6.3)

Recommendation 6 - Political Leadership and Corporate Management Board (CMB)
•
•

This recommendation is the most important of the review.
To develop the capabilities and capacities required to deliver the strategy, the political
leadership (dominant regime) and the Corporate Management Board (subordinate regime)
will need to:
o Arrive at a shared commitment to the relevant corporate priorities and
o Align their respective governance arrangements with those required to deliver
them.

Page 50

8

Recommendation 7 - Chief Executive and Council
•
•

The Chief Executive and CMB to advise the political leadership and opposition leaders on
investment required – in management, officers, and tools – as a pre-condition of delivering
the transformation strategy and action plan.
Some requirements are highlighted in the Budget and Growth Bid (Appendix 2) with
priorities for:
o

o
o
o

o
o

The appointment of a Development Management Transformation Manager (Fixed
term contract) and arrangements for overseeing the new proposed service
pathways and performance management systems over the longer term.
The appointment of 2 Principal Development Case Managers
Enhanced urban design capacity including the production of a local design guide and
appropriate masterplans/design codes
Enhanced legal service capacities to support Local Plan making and Development
Management most notably in negotiating and drafting (deliverable and enforceable)
S106 Agreements
The production of a developers’ contribution guidance document and appointment
of a 106/CIL delivery officer
The Chief Executive and CMB to advise the political leadership and opposition
leaders on a detailed action plan and programme to put in place and operate
enhanced service pathways for:
▪ Customer interface and enquiry pathway (section 7.2)
▪ Place making pathway (section 7.6)
▪ Development Management pathway (section 7.10)
▪ S106 Agreement pathway (section 7.11)
▪ Enforcement pathway (section 7.13)
▪ Member development management pathway (section 6.3).

Recommendation 8 - Chief Executive
▪

▪

▪

The Chief Executive should review the leadership requirements for delivering and sustaining
an improved planning service, including succession planning for the Director of Public
Services in anticipation of his retirement.
The starting points for defining the job purposes and person specification are framed by the
administration’s political priority to a be a place making LPA, the requirements for
managerial leadership and delivery of the LPA transformation strategy and action plan.
The Chief Executive should consider how best to ensure the Corporate Management Board
has appropriate and sufficient planning advice and guidance to secure corporate ownership
and direction in line with RTPI guidance.

2.

Review background

2.1

The brief for the East of England Local Government Association Peer Review Team was to
formulate a strategy and operational development plan to ensure the LPA is fit for the
purposes of fulfilling its statutory and regulatory obligations and Corporate Plan vision and
objectives.

2.2

The proposal envisaged the strategy and operational development plan would draw
together recommendations arising from this review and other recent and current reviews to
develop the LPA as one characterised by:

Page 51

9

•

•

•

•

•

•

Community leadership: Members – as community leaders – have professional
support required to understand and mediate in an objective manner on conflicts
between:
o Government imperatives for and local resistance to development
o different community interests
o market interests and community wants
o meeting the needs of the present whilst providing for future generations
Strategic governance: Members and the Corporate Management Team share and
keep up to date their vision and corporate priorities for the LPA and the outcomes
required to realise the vision. Ensure the LPA fulfils its statutory and regulatory
obligations and performance targets and maintain strategic oversight of the LPA’s
resources including funding (Council funding, external income, and grants), people,
IT and discretionary budgets, planning and infrastructure partnerships and service
delivery models.
Strategic partnerships: Gives effective political leadership and senior management
priority to work with national and sub regional partners and Government agencies
to identify and address sub regional physical and service infrastructure deficits and
requirements
Plan making: The LPA has capacities and competences to formulate a vision and
strategic objectives for the future of Uttlesford and turn this vision into a timely,
sound Local Plan which provides for identified housing, employment, transport, and
infrastructure needs designed to contribute towards a net zero carbon future and
net gains in natural capital
Place making: The LPA has the capacities and competences to be a place making LPA
which acts in partnership - with existing communities, the district’s Town and Parish
Councils, neighbour LPAs, developers, and service providers - to promote, negotiate
and deliver quality development and places with supporting and timely
infrastructure and services
Service excellence: The LPA managers and staff share a commitment to service
excellence where the LPA’s activities are specified, procured, structured, resourced
and managed to deliver:
o responsive community leadership
o effective strategic partnerships
o sound plan making
o quality place making
o continuous improvement in governance, service operations, and culture.
These activities are defined through:
o
o
o
o

service plan goals and KPIs
service practices and procedures
resource allocations
performance management and culture.

The latter characterised through:
o
o

behavioural norms
rules and distinctive practices, for example:
▪ team working

Page 52

10

▪
▪
▪
▪
▪

matrix management
openness
accountability
knowledge acquisition and transfer
informing innovation and adoption of best practices.

Corporate Plan and Policy Context
2.3 In May 2019, a new administration was elected with stated aims to:
•

•
•

‘Fix the Local Plan so it is evidence-led, puts infrastructure before new homes, is controlled
by local communities and not developers, and provides homes that are affordable for local
people,
Make sure the scale of development closely relates to the identified housing need, and that
the Local Plan satisfies the Planning Inspectorate,
Under the Local Plan new housing will be built in the locations that the evidence shows are
the most sustainable.’

2.4 The new Council has subsequently adopted a Corporate Plan with a vision of ‘Making Uttlesford
the best place to live, work and play,’ and four strategic objectives:
•
•
•
•

Putting residents first
Active place-maker for our towns and villages
Progressive custodian of our rural environment
Championing our district

2.5 The Council is concerned to ensure that its role as the LPA is fit for the purpose of serving current
and future generations by preparing a timely and sound Local Plan in accordance with its obligations,
making defensible planning decisions, and realising its Corporate Plan vision and strategic objectives.
2.6 This review has involved two interrelated work streams. The first was concerned with the LPA’s
role in Local Plan making.
This commenced with the Peer Review Team giving advice on whether to repair or withdraw the
submitted Local Plan. Following a decision to withdraw the plan, the work stream continued with
advice and inputs to help the LPA make the best possible start to preparing a new Local Plan and its
delivery. The new Local Plan governance arrangements are being refreshed as work on the Local
Plan is progressed. The Peer Review Team have concluded that, notwithstanding two failed plans,
the Local Plan policy team is relatively well staffed compared to similar LPAs and has a budget
sufficient to procure external specialist inputs necessary to secure a ‘sound’ Local Plan.
The second workstream was concerned with the LPA’s role in Development Management which
includes handling planning applications, decision making, S106 planning obligations agreements,
appeals, monitoring, and enforcement. The latter workstream is the primary concern of this report
which commences with an analysis of the wider institutional and governance context.

3. Institutional Context
3.1 The Council has an ambition to ensure its role as the LPA is fit for the purpose of serving current
and future generations by preparing a timely and sound Local Plan in accordance with its obligations,
making defensible planning decisions, and realising its Corporate Plan vision and objectives. These

Page 53

11

are respectively to make Uttlesford the best place to live, work and play and be an ‘active placemaker for our towns and villages.’
3.2 The Planning Service is widely acknowledged to be an underperforming service. This is reflected
on the planning policy side through two failed Local Plans and on the Development Management
side through bottom quartile performance against the Government’s three Key Performance
Indicators for timely and quality of decision making and the quality of development outcomes. From
this baseline, the Corporate Plan goal to ‘deliver an outstanding planning and place-making
capability with the right capacity to create quality outcomes with and for all our communities’ will
require transformative capacity.
3.3 Previous reviews have focussed on specific parts of the planning service. They have mainly
identified symptoms, as opposed to diagnosing causes, and made prescriptions at the operational
level. The prescriptions have not been universally implemented due in part to lack of new resources
and managerial and staff ownership.
This failure to act on the recommendations of previous reviews demonstrates that transformational
change sought by the Council requires LPA wide ownership of recommendations, effective
allocations and utilisation of Member, staff, and stakeholders’ resources with focussed political and
corporate management leadership.
The EELGA peer review has been privileged to provide a comprehensive review of the LPA as a whole
and the elements within it. This has enabled the review to diagnose the institutional context and
operational practices and identify links between them.
This together with deliberative discussions with LPA staff has informed and built ownership of
prescriptions to address the root causes of underperformance and promote continuous service
improvement.
3.4 To understand the institutional context we begin with two helpful definitions:
Institutions are defined by ‘patterns of human action and relationships that persist and reproduce
themselves over time independently of the identity of the biological individuals performing within
them.’
Governance is defined as ‘those mechanisms by which the behavioural regularities that constitute
institutions are maintained and enforced.’
3.5 These definitions point to the rigidity, predictability and path dependency of institutions which
are reinforced by governance mechanisms. These mechanisms comprise externally imposed
governance regimes comprising rules, standard operating practices and compliance procedures. For
example, LPAs are the subject of Government rules and operating practices for Local Plan making
and Development Management.
The compliance procedures for Local Plan making are exercised through examinations by
independent Inspectors and modifications and for Development Management through Key
Performance Indicators, the appeals system, and Secretary of State’s power to call in applications.
3.6 Whilst highly bounded governance regimes predetermine behaviours, local authorities produce
widely different service outcomes. These differences arise where actors, as institutional
entrepreneurs, manipulate and combine governance possibilities to create new capacities to make a

Page 54

12

difference. Institutional entrepreneurs, reflect on choices, learn from mistakes, and exert
transformative power.
Such transformative power can be observed in the top two performing local authorities in a
government initiative, the Local Public Service Agreement. This agreement required local authorities
to deliver stretching targets for several service areas over three years in exchange for reward
monies. These local authorities were found to share five governance characteristics which were
absent in the two lowest performing local authorities. By comparing the Council against these
characteristics, it is possible to identify and make proposals to address gaps in the Council’s
transformative capacities to establish a fit for purposes LPA.

Vision and Creating Public Value: Leader and Cabinet
High performing local authorities
Priority to a specific vision and public value
goals

Uttlesford District Council
• Corporate Plan vision to be ‘active place
maker for our towns and villages’
• Corporate Plan public value goal to, ‘deliver
an outstanding planning and place-making
capability with the right capacity to create
quality outcomes with and for all our
communities.’

Vision and Creating Public Value: Corporate Management Team
High performing local authorities
In full alignment with Leader and Cabinet vision
and public value goals

Uttlesford District Council
• Client for EELGA Peer Review to prepare
development plan to realise vision and
public value goals

Rules: Leader and Cabinet
High performing local authorities
Commitment to invest to create transformative
capacity as required

Uttlesford District Council
• Commitment to invest to create
transformative capacity as required

Rules: Corporate Management Team
High performing local authorities
CMT and Service Leaders’ commitment to
focussed, entrepreneurial allocation and
delivery of resources

Uttlesford District Council
• CMT has administered and adjudicated on
Growth Bids (£240k allocation to Planning
Service and £144k for Planning Solicitors)
continued dependency on embedded
procedures would delay delivery of
resources

Page 55

13

Standard Operating Procedures: Leader and Cabinet
High performing local authorities
Commitment to innovations in governance to
create transformative capacity

Uttlesford District Council
• Corporate Plan priorities to change
operating procedures to build planning and
place-making capabilities and capacities

Standard Operating Procedures: Corporate Management Team
High performing local authorities
Crisp, entrepreneurial delivery of political
priorities

Uttlesford District Council
CMT has overseen:
• Local Plan: Local Development Scheme and
Statement of Community Involvement to
inform programme for submission (2023)
and adoption (2024)
• CMT to demonstrate entrepreneurial
delivery of transformation plan measures:
o Policy tools and governance
mechanisms needed to do the job
o Service pathways for:
▪ Customer interface and
enquiries
▪ Place making (preapplications)
▪ Development Management
▪ S106 agreements
▪ Enforcement
▪ Member development
• LPA: Build capabilities and capacities to
create public value envisaged in the
Corporate Plan

Compliance Procedures: Leader and Cabinet
High performing local authorities
Highest political commitment to Performance
Management System (PMS) to deliver vision
and public value goals

Uttlesford District Council
▪ Governance regime and PMS required to
drive development of ‘outstanding planning
and place-making capability’ with the ‘right
capacity to create quality outcomes’

Compliance Procedures: Corporate Management Team
High performing local authorities
Top team proactive focus on Performance
System Management priority targets, strongly

Uttlesford District Council
▪ CMT and service managers proactive focus
on new Local Plan but no evidence that
PMS is being used as a tool to drive

Page 56

14

enforced through ‘star chamber’ reviews by the
Leader, Portfolio Holder and Chief Executive

improvement of the Development
Management service from bottom quartile
of Government’s KPIs

Cultural Norms: Leader and Cabinet
High performing local authorities
Council and its contributing partners and
stakeholders as one team with collective
responsibility to deliver shared goals

Uttlesford District Council
▪ Council giving disproportionate attention
to: i) Parochial voices as opposed to
balancing the collective interests of the
district.
ii) Stakeholders with weak transformative
powers whilst remaining hesitant to engage
strategically with those with such powers, Essex
County Council, and land promoters

Cultural Norms: Corporate Management Team
High performing local authorities
Roles and responsibilities of partners and
stakeholders clearly defined and managed
through strong networks and problem-solving
mechanisms

Uttlesford District Council
▪ Weak links between LPA relevant
Corporate Plan priorities and LPA
operational practices
▪ Weak links between LPA partners and
stakeholders

3.7 The above comparisons show the Council Leader and Cabinet share three of the five
characteristics of the Leaders and Cabinet of local authorities which have delivered significant
improvements in service outcomes. These flow from the Council’s Corporate Plan vision and
priorities for the LPA, its collective appetite to change the LPA’s standard operating procedures and
critically invest ‘what it takes’ to deliver transformational change. Together these amount to a new
governance regime with further work required to develop enforcement procedures through
performance management systems and a new cultural norm for the co-production of shared goals
with the stakeholders who matter most.
3.8 The comparisons show the Corporate Management Team working towards full alignment with
the Leader and Cabinet’s vision and public value goals. Key innovations being the new Local Plan
vision for a net zero carbon future, a more comprehensive Local Plan making governance regime and
extended community engagement in the new Local Plan Issues and Options stage.
3.9 The Corporate Plan agenda for transforming the Council’s LPA role and effectiveness will change
the Council’s relationships and in turn the Council itself as these relationships and related networks
create new possibilities. Some of these possibilities include networked governance with Essex
County Council (in respect of master planning, education provision and infrastructure planning,
funding and delivery), Town and Parish Councils (in pre-planning applications discussions),
developers (in positive planning initiatives such as master planning, co-production of advance
infrastructure and innovations in zero carbon development) and rural communities (in reimagining
the countryside with farming, water management and environment interest groups).

Page 57

15

4. Development Management Service and POS Enterprise Review (2018)
The Development Management service
4.1 The Development Management service is a vital part of the Council’s role as the Local Planning
Authority through which to implement planning policy and enable quality outcomes for sustainable
development. It provides pre-planning application advice to members of the public, businesses,
developers, and agents, registers planning applications, considers planning applications for
compliance with the policies set out in the National Planning Policy Framework, the adopted Local
Plan and relevant policy documents. It makes decisions under the officers’ delegated authority and
as appropriate makes recommendations to the Planning Committee for decisions. It negotiates
Section 106 planning obligation agreements with developers and enforces against breaches of
planning approvals, conditions, obligations and planning law in general.
4.2 The Development Management service as defined in this review comprises: Support and
Registration team, the Development Management Teams (north and south), Planning Solicitors in
Legal Services, the Enforcement Team, and the Planning Committee.
4.3 The Development Management Teams are led by the Development Manager and two area
Development Management Team Leaders. The development management staff comprise three
senior planning officers, ten career grade staff (of whom 4 are studying to qualify as planners) and
agency staff. The service contracts with Essex County Council’s Place Services for specialist advice on
historic building conservation, landscape, ecology, and habitat matters. Essex County Council in its
roles as Highways Authority and other infrastructure needs under its control. Felsted and Thaxted
Parish Councils and Great Dunmow Town Councils have Neighbourhood Plans, and a further eight
areas are designated.

Review method
4.4 The EELGA Development Management review was informed by:
1) Desk top review of Development Management’s resources: funding (fee income) and budget
allocations.
2) Desk top review of the Development Management performance management metrics and data,
notably the PS1 and 2 and KPI returns.
3) Desk top review of previous and then current reviews. In this report we have cited, in Sections 4.5
– 4.14 below, the key recommendations of the POSE Peer Review March 2018. We have
incorporated points relevant to the review objectives made in the Planning Obligations Task Group
draft report and the Chadwick review into the complaint from Saffron Walden Town Council. The
Planning Advisory Service Review of Major Planning Applications Process has been paused during
the lockdowns.
4) Four rounds of engagement with stakeholders as follows:
i) Group meetings were held with the Support and Registration Team; Development Management
Area Teams and Enforcement Team and one to one meetings were held with the Head of
Development Management, the two area Team Leaders and Legal Services staff. In parallel
interviews were held with representatives of two Town Councils and four land promoters / house
builders. Members were engaged through a ‘Members’ voices’ consultation and invitations to speak

Page 58

16

directly to the review team. All meetings and consultations were conducted in confidence to enable
all parties to speak freely and candidly about their experiences with the service and future
requirements.
ii) In the second round, in-confidence workshops were held to enable members of the Support and
Registration Team, Development Management Area Teams, Enforcement Team and Management
Team to:
• Check back on the issues raised in the first round of meetings,
• Assist in framing solutions to the issues,
• Discuss how actions arising can be delivered and a positive culture towards performance
management and continuous improvement be established
iii) Consultation with the service Management Team, staff, and client group to comment on the
review report and proposals for the LPA transformation strategy and plan
iv) Allowance has been made for a presentation if required to an All-Member Workshop, for
Members to consider and comment on the key findings and draft final transformation strategy and
plan.

The POSE review 2018
4.5 In March 2018, POSE, the consultancy arm of the Planning Officers Society, having reviewed the
Council’s planning service, concluded
The overall view of the Review Team was that the Service was not operating to a level that is
consistent with the Council’s objective to provide a very good planning service (2018 POSE
Section 1.7).
4.6 The POSE Review Team found ‘many well motivated and competent officers committed to
providing a good service to the public’ (2018 POSE Section 1.6) but there was ‘a problem of
attracting permanent staff to the authority…. The Review Team was told that salaries were not
competitive but there has not been the opportunity to test this. Recruitment of planning staff is a
national problem and most authorities throughout the country rely on temporary and agency staff
to a greater or lesser extent. Salaries, reputation, and the type of work can all be factors in
recruitment. The Council needs to understand what factors are relevant for Uttlesford and how they
can be addressed’ (2018 POSE Section 1.9)
4.7 The report identified two main priorities for the Development Management service,
performance management (as the overarching priority) and the roles of the Development
Management Manager and Team Leaders (2018 POSE Section 1.10).

Performance management
4.8 The review reported the Council’s Development Management performance against the
Government’s key criteria as follows:
i) For major applications, lowest quartile,
ii) For non- major applications, 3rd quartile, well below where a good authority would be.
iii) The ‘quality’ indicator (performance at appeal), at a level where there is a risk of intervention

Page 59

17

4.9 The report further commented,
‘More worrying is that neither staff nor Members were sufficiently aware of performance
levels and the monitoring and management of performance was found to be very weak’
(2018 POSE Section 1.7).
4.10 The POSE Review Team advised the Council to:
•

Review the performance management process to establish a clear set of priorities
performance criteria which relate to external comparisons - nationally set criteria,
national or comparator group average or upper quartile performance

•

Tailor the criteria and associated performance reporting for the appropriate audience
objectives: corporate, departmental, service, team or individual

4.11 The specific recommendations arising were:
•

Review the performance monitoring process to ensure corporate, department and
service priorities are regularly monitored at the appropriate levels and to the right
timescales

•

Quarterly monitoring of (Government) CLG current and proposed ‘designation’ criteria

•

Regular reporting of the key performance indicators to Members

4.12 The POSE Review Team identified:
An urgent need to clarify the management responsibilities in development management. The
Development Management Manager and the Team Leaders do not manage performance regularly
or effectively and performance management information is not readily available.
Both Team Leaders carry a significant caseload and in this respect act as ‘senior professionals’ as well
as managers. The conflict this creates between dealing with major applications, managing team and
personal workloads and performance and management staff create competing priorities which are
difficult to reconcile. The authority need to be much clearer on where the responsibilities lie which
may involve restructuring and / revisiting roles (2018 POSE Section 1.11).
4.13 The fourth specific recommendation was to:
•

Review the roles of the Development Management Manager and the Team Leader to
ensure their respective management and professional roles are clarified.

4.14 The following table summarises POSE’s 2018 criteria for assessing a ‘fit for purpose’ LPA. In
section 5 below we have added criteria to reflect recent developments in planning practice, made
assessments of the LPA’s current performance against these benchmarks and made
recommendations to match them.

Page 60

18

POSE 2018 Review: What good looks like
1) Local Plan Making and Delivery
i) A Local Plan evidence base tested by the PAS checklist and
ii) A proactive approach to the duty-to-co-operate with relevant partners
A comprehensive Infrastructure Delivery Plan signed off by all relevant partners.
Evidence of at least a 5-year housing land supply to meet OAN
An up to date fully NPPF compliant Local Plan reflecting corporate objectives, in place at the
earliest opportunity.
2) Development Management
A proactive approach to implementation including masterplans and/or development briefs for
significant sites, regeneration schemes and proactive care for the historic environment.
A pre-applications service including PPAs and charges, a protocol for involving Councillors on
significant cases and MOUs with key consultees.
A clearly expressed policy towards the use of S106 obligations setting out where they will be
required, for what purpose and the necessary mechanisms to ensure delivery
An efficient proactive Development Management service that:
i) Meets all statutory and local targets
ii) Offers good customer care and consistent planning advice,
iii) Uses up to date technology
iv) Delivers, enables, monitors, and enforces quality outcomes
i) An effective scheme of delegation,
ii) Mandatory training for Councillors especially those sitting on the Planning Committee
iii) Clear and transparent Committee procedures
iv) Clear co-ordinated professional planning advice available to Members
3) Resources
i) A valued, motivated, and skilled officer corps,
ii) Working as an integrated planning service with
iii) Appropriate performance management systems and
iv) Training opportunities
Adequate resources to deliver all the above.

5. Summary of Findings
5.1 The Development Management case handling service is in a worse position than that reported in
the Planning Officers’ Society Enterprise (POSE) review 2018. For example, in the two years from 1 st
January 2019 to 31st December 2020, the Council was ranked 342/353 LPAs in England against the
Government’s KPI for speed of handling major applications. During this period 45 of 67 (67.3%
against an England average of 88%) of major applications were determined within 13 weeks (10
cases) and the time agreed with applicants via PPAs and Extensions of Time (35 of 49 cases). To be
the bottom performer in the top, second and third quartiles, the LPA would have had to determined

Page 61

19

56, 61 and 65 of the applications within the above times. The performance on major applications
leaves the Council close to being at risk of being ‘designated’ under current MHCLG criteria.
5.2 Coinciding with declining performance since the POSE review, the service has fewer officers with
the expertise to handle minor and major planning applications. It currently relies on an interim to
represent the Council at appeal hearings. The remaining skill base is also fragile due to continued
dependence on temporary contract staff. Since the last review, the Council has succeeded in
recruiting career grade staff. However, line management and support for these staff is limited as
both Team Leaders, as found in the POSE review, continue to act as ‘senior professionals’ with heavy
caseloads. A further success is the production of excellent monitoring data but there is little
evidence this is used as a management tool to inform and inculcate a continuous improvement
culture. Notwithstanding high caseloads and complaints from all quarters, staff to their credit remain
committed to do the best they can. Recruitment of additional senior staff with proven place making
experience is an urgent priority.
5.3 Members of the LPA staff interviewed for the review – across Support and Registration,
Development Management (case handling), Enforcement and Legal Services - identified a service
that is on the back foot engaged in reactive work and expending scarce resources addressing the
symptoms of an under resourced service. Examples include:
•
•
•
•
•

•

Making requests for amendments to planning applications (as there is insufficient time to
promote better applications in the pre-application stage)
Refusing applications due to lack of time to seek amendments
Excessive use of extensions of time beyond the time within which the Government expects
LPAs to consider planning applications
Handling call ins from Members
Preparing appeals, noting due to poor applications, overturns, and non-determination, the
refusal rate of 19% of all applications has risen since Q1 2019 to 28%, markedly higher than
the national average of 12%, and
Enforcement against non-compliance with conditions and Section 106 obligations (in some
cases due to allowing developers’ Solicitors to draft the agreements in the absence of
sufficient in-house Planning Solicitors).

5.4 The cumulative pressures have led to a conveyor belt culture characterised by a dominant
narrative of how many cases each officer is has completed and how many cases they are handling.
To operate the conveyor, staff, who in some cases have more than 70 cases, are routinely working in
the evening and weekends. Their work though is too often reduced to an administrative role. The
service needs to be proactively leveraging the planning system to promote better placemaking and
development outcomes for the built and natural environments, community, and economic wellbeing.
5.5 Having considered the innovations in governance and service procedures and practices, we turn
to the resources required to enable transformative change.
5.6 The Development Management service comprises 1 No. Development Management Manager, 2
No. Team Leaders and 11 No. planning officers. The latter being 10 fte after allowing for No. 2 part
time and No. 4 Career Grade staff with study leave.

Page 62

20

Staff Competencies: Development Management Applications

Competent experienced
Gaining experience
Not ready

Everything Else
Mar 18
Dec 20
10
12
1
12
13

Minors
Mar 18
8
1
1
12

Dec 20
5
4
4
13

Majors
Mar 18
6
1
3
12

Dec 20
4.5
8.5
13

Inquiries
Mar 18
Dec 20
1
1
11
12
12
13

Dec 20
4
1
8
13

Staff Competencies: Appeal Types

Competent experienced
Gaining experience
Not ready

Written Reps
Mar 18
12
12

Dec 20
13
13

Hearings
Mar 18
5
7
12

5.7 Against a background of increasing demands on the service, more staff with more experience
and competencies are required. In the period March 2018 to December 2020, the staff cohort has
increased by 1 fte but has fewer collective competencies and experience to handle minor
applications (from 8 to 5fte) and majors (from 6 to 4fte).
This is due to failure to retain experienced staff and then having failed to recruit suitably qualified
successors a decision to recruit and train new entrants. Even this approach is falling short as the two
Team Leaders are diverted from supporting the development of their staff to carry heavy caseloads.
Worse still, one of the Team Leaders is a locum on a six-month contract and the only officer with
sufficient experience to represent the Council at planning inquiries.
The cost cutting strategy is proven to be a false economy, not just in service performance and
outcomes but in the high cost of interims. A stark warning for any future administration set on
making cuts to this service in the cause of ‘efficiencies.’ In retrospect the Council’s money would
have been better spent on bidding in the market to secure experienced staff.
5.8 In 2018 the POSE review referred to recruitment of planning staff being a national problem and
the widespread reliance on agency staff. POSE noted ‘salaries, reputation, and the type of work can
all be factors in recruitment.’ Market conditions have not changed, but recognition of the
consequences of lacking experienced development managers has. The Council now needs to create
attractive development management roles and bid in the market until it can recruit the right
candidates to lead the pre-application, development management and S106 pathways for majors.
5.9 In parallel, the Council needs to start work on a long-term LPA wide solution to securing the
professional expertise needed to be a good LPA. The proposed changes to the NPPF place greater
emphasis on highly specialist skills and expertise in design, ecology, and mitigating and adapting to
climate change through the planning system. In this context, the Council needs to explore
opportunities presented by the shared service model. This model creates scale and a breath of work
and specialisms and management roles that are attractive to good quality candidates. Small district
LPAs standing alone will be likely to struggle.

Page 63

21

5.10 In Section 4.14 we summarised the POSE review team’s view of ‘what good looks like.’. As the
template is three years old, we have added further criteria to take account of subsequent
developments in planning policy and practice.
5.11 We have benchmarked the Council’s current position against the resulting 15 criteria of what
‘good looks like’ and recommended actions to match them. The criteria are grouped under Local
Plan making and delivery, development management and resources.

Local Plan Making and Delivery
1) POSE Review 2018
i) A Local Plan evidence base tested by the PAS checklist and
ii) A proactive approach to the duty-to-co-operate with relevant partners
EELGA findings 2021
i)New governance and project management put
in place
ii) Work commenced on evidence base and
issues and options
ii) Local Plan making duty-to-co-operate
meetings underway

Action points 2021
i) Local Plan team to undertake PAS checklist
ii) Local Plan team to record and issue notes of
duty-to-co-operate meetings and formal
confirmation of arising
iii) Strategic partnerships to be fostered

2) POSE Review 2018
A comprehensive Infrastructure Delivery Plan signed off by all relevant partners.
EELGA findings 2021
Brief for IDP currently out to tender

Action points 2021
IDP will need to inform spatial strategy options
and site development planning requirements
for net zero carbon future

3) EELGA new fit for purpose test
Evidence to inform policy set for a net zero carbon spatial strategy, place making, construction,
transport, energy supply and management
EELGA findings 2021
Opportunities to collaborate with neighbour
LPAs being explored

Action points 2021
Officers to liaise with ECC counterparts to
prepare high level Member meeting to explore
joint working (transport studies, master
planning, S106) and strategic infrastructure
planning (see 5 below)

4) EELGA new fit for purpose test: Evidence to inform policies for net gain in habitat
EELGA findings 2021
Opportunities to collaborate with neighbour
LPAs being explored

Action points 2021
Progress discussions with Greater Cambridge
Joint Planning Service re: water management
strategy etc.

Page 64

22

5) EELGA new fit for purpose test
Effective cross boundary multi-agency infrastructure planning, funding, and delivery partnerships
EELGA findings 2021
Commissioned work to build new coalitions to
identify shared strategic infrastructure and
investment requirements and hence policy and
funding priorities

Action points 2021
Progress cross border multi-agency
collaborations re: strategic transport corridors
A505 / A11 and A120 / M11

6) POSE Review 2018: Evidence of at least a 5-year housing land supply to meet OAN
EELGA findings 2021
No 5-year land supply

Action points 2021
Need to engage positively with promoters of
emerging major applications to bring forward
appropriate applications in advance of the Local
Plan adoption

7) POSE Review 2018 An up to date fully NPPF compliant Local Plan reflecting corporate objectives,
in place at the earliest opportunity.
EELGA findings 2021
i) Submitted Local Plan withdrawn 2020.
ii) New governance and LDS to make new Local
Plan for submission 2023

Action points 2021
Progress forward programme to prepare Reg 18
plan re: evidence base, call for sites
assessments and Local Plan Leadership Group
meeting agendas

Development Management
1) EELGA new fit for purpose test Effective Member / Officer working
EELGA findings 2021
Poor – lack of trust evident

Action points 2021
i) Member training to underpin the value of
positive member / officer working and
compliance with the code of conduct
ii) Officers to include Members in pre
application work and timely response to
enquiries

2) POSE Review 2018 A proactive approach to implementation including masterplans and/or
development briefs for significant sites, regeneration schemes and proactive care for the historic
environment.
EELGA findings 2021
i) No formal arrangements for effective joint
working with ECC
ii) Emerging initiative for master planning and
associated studies for Saffron Walden East
iii) Local Listings and Historic Gardens Review

Action points 2021
i) Specify joint working requirements and
governance arrangements with ECC
ii) Draft implementation programme (in
response to call for sites assessments)
iii) Procure call off contract with place making
consultancy as part of place making LPA

Page 65

23

3) POSE Review 2018 A pre-applications service including PPAs and charges, a protocol for involving
Councillors on significant cases and MOUs with key consultees.
EELGA findings 2021
i) Pre-apps: Extended response times failing to
deliver value for money
ii) PPAs: Lack of and weak ties with key
consultees and additional resources required to
provide value for money. Losing credibility in
the market and increasing risk of appeals
against non-determination
iii) No evidence that Members are enabled to
be involved at early stages so tend be involved
late in the process

Action points 2021
i) Pre- apps: Put in staff resources and working
arrangements to deliver advice in a timely
manner
ii) PPAs: Build PPA co-producer team to operate
in a more co-ordinated, comprehensive, and
timely manner
iii) Propose and work in accordance with a
protocol for Member involvement in pre-app
and other early stages

4) POSE Review 2018 A clearly expressed policy towards the use of S106 obligations setting out
where they will be required, for what purpose and the necessary mechanisms to ensure delivery
EELGA findings 2021
No policy or guidance in place.

Action points 2021
i) Brief for Obligations SPD and appropriate
housing, open space, and other standards
ii) MoU with stakeholder infrastructure delivery
partners, notably ECC, Local Councils
iii) Brief for and preparation of a CIL

5) POSE Review 2018 An efficient proactive Development Management service that:
i) Meets all statutory and local targets
ii) Offers good customer care and consistent planning advice,
iii) Uses up to date technology
iv) Delivers, enables, monitors, and enforces quality outcomes
EELGA findings 2021
i) Performance regressing against statutory
KPI’s since 2018
ii) Service reactive, on the backfoot with
excessive workloads
ii) Decision making has excessive call ins
overturns, refusals, and appeals
ii) S106 obligations are inconsistent due to lack
of guidance
iii) IT enhancements identified
iv) Limited roles in proactive enabling and
delivering quality development

Action points 2021
i) Recruit required staff without delay
ii) Implement proposed pathways to put service
on the front foot
ii) Members to adopt best practice call in
protocol, and delegate applications
recommended for approval
ii) Recruit Planning Solicitors without delay
iii) Implement IT enhancements without delay
iv) Shift resources to proactive, positive
planning as per pathways

6) POSE Review 2018
i) An effective scheme of delegation,
ii) Mandatory training for Councillors especially those sitting on the Planning Committee
iii) Clear and transparent Committee procedures
iv) Clear co-ordinated professional planning advice available to Members

Page 66

24

EELGA findings 2021
i) Good practice delegation scheme
ii) Mandatory training: Some Members
inexperience of the planning system and their
role in it, insufficient Member engagement in
the pre-app stage
iii) Pre-meeting briefings lack transparency,
poor Committee procedures, agenda
management, time keeping and ill -considered
decision making (leading to appeals)
iv) Professional planning advice hampered by
excessive workloads lack of appropriate toolkit
and lack of an up-to-date Local Plan

Action points 2021
i) Need to update call-in protocol
ii) Mandatory training needs enforcing
ii) Replace all Member briefings with Chair /
Vice Chair briefings and encourage Members to
engage in pre application meetings and contact
case officers in advance of Planning Committee
iii) Refresh and implement meeting template
for Planning Committee including public
speaking and avoiding repetition and nonplanning matters
iv) Additional staff and DM toolkit

Resources
1) POSE Review 2018
i) A valued, motivated, and skilled officer corps,
ii) Working as an integrated planning service with
iii) Appropriate performance management systems and
iv) Training opportunities
EELGA findings 2021
i) Not valued: Evidence of public criticism and
verbal abuse
i) Highly motivated, but overloaded
i) Lack of experienced case officers
ii) Lacks effective, timely co-ordination with
stakeholders notably ECC and Local Councils
iii) Wealth of excellent data but not being
applied to address process issues and inform
resource requirements / allocations
iv) Career grade staff on day release but Team
Leaders have insufficient time to give one to
one management and support

Action points 2021
i) Establish positive member / officer working,
with referral procedures for breaches
i) DM Team Leaders to allocate 75% of their
time to supporting staff
i) Recruit more experienced DM case officers
ii) Introduce and enforce S106 pathway
iii) Establish a PMS to establish a shared
identity – everyone’s job to deliver
transformation,
Confirm tasks and embed them in service plans
and accountabilities
Report to transformation lead managers,
exception reports to CEx and Cabinet

2) POSE Review 2018 Adequate resources to deliver all the above.
EELGA findings 2021
Historic lack of resources recent Growth Bid
allocation of £240k incorporated in 21/22
budget with £144k for No 2 Legal Solicitors

Action Points 2021
CMB to attach highest priority to
entrepreneurial delivery of the recommended
resource allocations

6. MEMBER GOVERNANCE OF THE LPA
6.1 Effective Member governance is required to establish and sustain a fit for purpose LPA required
for place making and best available development outcomes

Page 67

25

6.2 The new context calls for all Members to fulfil their LPA responsibilities. This applies to all
Members who have multiple roles in the work of the LPA.
The collective community leadership role in establishing a vision and strategic objectives for the LPA,
representing, and championing the LPA in community, partnerships, and other third-party contexts.
In budget making roles making decisions on relevant budgets and wider resources. In plan making as
members of the Local Plan Leadership Group and Scrutiny and as ward members who input to and
comment on planning applications.
Those Members who exercise the Development Management functions of the Council, as the Local
Planning Authority, have specific responsibilities to act in the interests of the whole community and
make transparent justifiable decisions based on national planning policy, the development plan and
other relevant material planning considerations.
To assist Members in fulfilling their respective roles as members of the LPA, the following
recommendations are made to provide training and protocols to foster positive Member / officer
relationships and equip Members to engage in appropriate pre-application discussions and fulfil best
practice roles in plan making, Development Management and scrutiny of the LPA.

The Member Development Management Pathway
6.3 In this section we consider Member roles along the Development Management pathway. Before
Members take their first step on the pathway, they need to undertake training to gain
understanding of the benefits of good Member and officer relationships, the Planning system, and
their roles within it.

Member and Officer Relationships
6.4 Member understanding of the value of mutual respect between Members and officers and the
various roles each plays in the planning system is critical to a ‘fit for purpose’ LPA. In short the term
‘the planners’ refers not just to professional planners but to Members and officers working together
to carry out the duties of the Council as LPA.
6.5 During the review, some Members referred to positive working relationships with officers but
other Members expressed a lack of trust in the officers. The Planning Committee appears to be an
arena for confrontation, officers criticised, and external professional technical evidence dismissed.
Such conduct harms Member / officer relationships and those concerned need to be aware of the
impact this has on the welfare of officers. For the Council as employer, this is a cause of concern.
Poor conduct also tarnishes the Council’s reputation with Government, its local government peers,
the communities it serves and local government labour markets.
6.6 All Members need to pay regard to the LGA’s guidance which includes the following:
Councillors and officers are indispensable to one another and mutual respect and
communication between both is essential for good local government. Together, they bring
the critical skills, experience and knowledge required to manage an effective public sector
organisation. Councillors provide a democratic mandate to council, whereas officers
contribute the professional and managerial expertise needed to deliver the policy
framework agreed by councillors” (LGA – A Councillor’s workbook on councillor/officer
relations).

Page 68

26

6.7 In presenting professional advice, Members should allow officers to explain their advice and ask
questions in a respectful manner.
Officers cannot respond to personal criticism in the same way that politicians can and have
to temper their remarks accordingly. Mutual respect and good communication are the key
to establishing good councillor and officer relations. Close personal familiarity should be
avoided – in simple terms, ‘be friendly, but don’t be friends. (LGA - A Councillor’s workbook
on councillor/officer relations).

Member understanding of the Planning System and their roles
6.8 Planning application decisions can have the significant consequences for promoters, individuals,
and communities. Just as Magistrates have training before they sit on the bench then so should
Members have mandatory introductory and annual refresher training before they can sit on the
Planning Committee.
6.9 Member roles in planning are helpfully defined in Planning Practice guidance as follows:
Local authority members are involved in planning matters to represent the interests of the
whole community and must maintain an open mind when considering planning applications.
Where members take decisions on planning applications, they must do so in accordance
with the development plan unless material considerations indicate otherwise. Members
must only take into account material planning considerations, which can include public
views where they relate to relevant planning matters. Local opposition or support for a
proposal is not in itself a ground for refusing or granting planning permission unless it is
founded upon valid material planning reasons.
6.10 The guidance makes it clear Members of the Planning Committee are not sitting in their ward
capacity, for a parochial interest or as a member of a particular grouping. Members are not expected
to be planning professionals but to listen to the professionals and apply judgement, balancing the
relevant material planning matters on the basis of demonstrable evidence in each case. Decision
making should be policy led and in accordance with a presumption in favour of sustainable
development. In most cases the direction of travel will be readily apparent. Officers on the other
hand should give clear substantiated professional advice taking full account of the Council’s
approved planning policies, set by Members, and all relevant material planning matters, whilst
respecting Members’ right to take a different view of the relevant balance between factors in each
case.
6.11 When the Committee takes a different view to officers, Members must be prepared to
articulate the reasons for their decision themselves (although they may turn to officers for the
technical wording). Similarly, officers have a duty to advise Members if they feel any reasons
Members wish to rely on cannot be justified and to warn of any risks associated with Members’
preferred course of action, although Members are of course at liberty to accept, or reject, that
advice. These processes rely on trust between officers and Members. It is also important for officers
to be available to deal with Members queries or follow up requests as soon as they become
available.

Page 69

27

Recommendation 1 - All Councillors and Members of the Planning Committee
1) All Member training to build an understanding of the mutual benefits of good Member and officer
relationships and the Code of Conduct
2) Before sitting on the Planning Committee, Members need to undertake mandatory training on
planning matters and attend annual refresher courses. Members need to be encouraged to read
the National Planning Policy Framework and observe a nationally recognised best practice LPA
Planning Committee at work.

Place Making and Pre-Application Discussions for Development Management
6.12 It is apparent Members are working on the back end of the Development Management
pathway, and not properly enabled to be at the front end. This tends to result in call-ins, requiring
applications to be considered at Committee that would be more appropriately dealt with under the
delegation scheme and overturning applications recommended for approval. These individual and
collective actions reflect a lack of trust between members and officers and are failures of process.
They appear to being made without regard to the impacts on the quality decision making,
performance of the LPA, costs pressures they add to an already overloaded and failing system.
Above all they reflect a lack of understanding of where in the planning process better place making
and development outcomes can be secured.
6.13 Members need to be enabled to work at the front end of the Development Management
pathway, collaborating creatively with officers in master planning and pre-planning applications
discussions. At these points, the Council and its stakeholders are best placed to secure better place
making and planning obligation outcomes. This does not rule out call in or overturns, when
appropriate but in line with best practice would minimise the need for ‘too late in the day’
interventions.

Development Management Delegation Scheme
6.14 Members need to ensure the LPA has a best practice delegation scheme and a proportionate
call-in protocol. The application of these documents would free up resources for both Members and
officers to focus on the pre-application stages and allow the Planning Committee to concentrate on
significant applications requiring deliberation on the balance between all the material planning
matters at stake.
6.15 A good delegation scheme should a) calibrate the delegation rate and b) be inclusive
(everything is delegated except…) to ensure the most appropriate proposals are identified as
matters for the Planning Committee.
6.16 The Council’s current delegation rate of 95% for all delegations is line with the national rate.
This equates to the Committee considering up to 80 of the 1,600 applications it receives per annum.
The resources necessary to take cases above this rate through the Planning Committee are
significantly more than those required delegated authority.
6.17 The Council has an inclusive delegation scheme which is consistent with the thrust of
legislation, guidance, and good practice. Thought though needs to be given to defining exceptions
based solely on scale. For example, a small proposal (say in a conservation area giving rise to
sensitive material matters) might need to be a Committee matter whilst a large-scale proposal (for a

Page 70

28

‘shed’ on an industrial estate) may give rise to few if any matters requiring the Committee’s
attention. Similarly, where the Council has an appropriate suite of detailed guidance such as
masterplans and design guidance / codes, once an outline permission has been granted most
reserved matters should be capable of delegated approval. A recent a reserved matter application
which was refused at Planning Committee and is now the subject of an appeal is a clear failure of
process and a significant waste of scarce resources.
Recommendation 2 - All Councillors
1) To ensure the Council has a best practice Development Management Delegation Scheme and
protocol for Member involvement in pre-application processes (see sections 6.14 – 6.17 above).
2) To ensure all Members receive training in the to be updated delegation scheme, and preapplication processes

Call in protocol
6.18 Call in protocols, like planning decisions themselves should be based on material planning
matters alone. Good practice schemes have a clear gateway process and have the following
characteristics:
•

Timely: A call-in should be made within two weeks after the publication of the weekly list of
applications. This will enable the LPA to establish and make transparent the decision-making
path for the application (see ii) Referral below) and help ensure it can be considered within the
nationally set time limits for applications (8 weeks for minors and 13 weeks for majors
respectively) and given the appropriate resource allocation.

•

Referral: The Chair and/or the Vice Chair of the Planning Committee to check whether the call-in
is built on relevant planning matters (not merely because it is controversial for other reasons or
to make political points).

•

Committee matter: The application should only ultimately proceed to Committee (from call in as
opposed to be scheduled for committee in any event) where the Member or Members
concerned wish to speak against the officer recommendation be it for grant or refusal.

6.19 The Council’s current call-in regime simply provides a five-week period time limit after
publication of the weekly list of applications. In the absence of a referral mechanism Members have
free reign to call in applications for material or non-material planning grounds. There is no provision
to allow for call-ins to be withdrawn where the Member or Members concerned do not wish to
speak against the officer recommendation (which is made at a stage later than the timetable for callins)
6.20 In recent months, the number of call ins have escalated. These appear to have contributed to
more overturns, more refusals, and more appeals which add further to an already overloaded
system. This is contrary to good practice LPAs where both call-ins and overturning officer’s
recommendations at Planning Committee are exceptions. This is another example of a failure of
process.

Page 71

29

Recommendation 3 - All Councillors
1) To update the call-in protocol to include a gateway process based on material planning
considerations to ensure the Planning Committee’s time is used effectively (see sections 6.18 – 6.20
above)
2) To ensure all Members receive training in the updated call-in process

Planning Committee Matters
6.21 Once operating an effective delegation and call-in system, the Planning Committee will be
dealing in the most part with the most complex cases. In any event, Members will be well informed
about such applications through:
•
•

Pre-application processes, a locus for Members to have an early and effective opportunity to
understand and comment on all aspects of complex proposals (as encouraged by current
national policy and guidance (see the place making pathway in section 6)
Pro-active community advocate role: for Members to engage with Planning officers to seek
out details of emerging planning applications so fewer issues need to be raised after
submission of the application or publication of the Committee report.

Pre-Committee Briefing
6.22 Under current procedures, officers provide a technical briefing for all Members of the
Committee after the Committee papers have been published. These briefings provide:
•
•

An opportunity for Members to request clarification of technical matters and hence avoid
wasting time at the Committee and a need to defer decisions
An opportunity for officers to receive an early indication of Members thinking and hence
prepare responses to their issues

On the other hand, briefings carry two risks
• Pre-determination, the meeting discussion expands beyond technical queries into the merits
of the case,
• Public suspicion of decisions being made behind closed doors in advance of the committee
itself.
6.23 On balance it is not good practice to hold a pre briefing for the whole committee and in any
event not necessary if Members are involved at the pre-application stage and seeking earlier
information about applications. It is good practice, for key officers to meet with the Chair and ViceChair to discuss the agenda and arrangements for the Committee following publication of the
Planning Committee papers.

Planning Committee Meeting
6.24 Planning Committee meetings are the LPA’s shop window. The way business is conducted, the
way decisions are made, as well as the decision themselves, provide insights into the competence or
otherwise of the LPA. The competencies relating to the chair in steering the meeting and speakers,
the officers in making presentations and addressing questions and the Committee Members in
raising relevant questions and holding discussions related to material considerations.

Page 72

30

6.25 The Planning Committee needs to become a panel where Members have an understanding of
the planning system and their
committee role. The Committee needs to consider evidence relating to material planning matters
and come to a decision in an orderly formal and highly structured manner. As matters stand,
Committee proceedings are less than business like.
There is considerable wasted time, unnecessary repetitive speeches and consideration of minor
matters that were more suitable for delegated decision-making. The Council’s refusal rate is high. In
the period up to including Q4 2018, the refusal was running at 19% of all applications (national
average 12%). Since Q1 2019, the refusal rate has risen more than double the national average.
Through this the Council is incrementally handing over local democratic control over decision making
and setting of conditions to Government Inspectors and potentially the terms of S106 planning
obligation agreements to developers through unilateral undertakings. One respondent, a
housebuilder, has concluded ‘in Uttlesford it will be easier to appeal after 13 weeks on grounds of
non-determination than risk a Council decision to refuse an application.’
6.26 The POSE review referred to a “generous” arrangement for public speaking and recommended
the Council to follow a good practice example. A particular aspect of good practice is as follows. To
allow fair and equal time, once a ward member and town/parish representative have spoken,
objectors to and supporters of an application either share or rely on a spokesperson for their
typically 3-minutes slot.
To ensure transparency, all the material issues and views expressed during the consultation are
made available to all and captured in the officer’s report and therefore known to the Committee.
The purpose of public speaking is simply to draw attention to specific points. On these grounds it is
not acceptable to introduce new material at the Committee decision making stage.
6.27 It is wholly exceptional for a Planning Committee to sit for a whole day as was the case with the
meeting in February 2021. This and the number of call ins, refusals and overturns give rise to serious
concerns about the effective functioning of the Planning Committee.
In accordance with the national delegation rate, Planning Committee meetings should be handling
an average of 6 or 7 items. This would enable the Committee to conduct its business within 2 – 3
hours during a morning, afternoon, or evening. The latter additionally allows for greater inclusive
accessibility for the public to witness the Committee’s proceedings
6.28 This review has presented the Planning Committee with a significant opportunity to improve its
effectiveness and reputation to the benefit of the district. As the Local Plan emerges to provide the
blueprint for development to meet objectively assessed needs, the role of the Panning Committee
will be critical in encouraging developers to invest in planning applications for better place making,
infrastructure and development outcomes.
Recommendation 4: Members of the Planning Committee
To review Planning Committee procedures, timing, and practices (see Sections 6.21 – 6.28 above)

Page 73

31

7. Development Management – Operational Transformation Plan
7.1 Through their collective voices, staff across the Support and Registration Team, Development
Management Area Teams, Planning Solicitors and Enforcement Team have proposed measures to
put the service on the front foot so it can act as a proactive place maker.
Their critique of the service and the review team’s knowledge of the sector, have informed the
following:
•
•
•

Recruit senior staff, with experience of place making to reduce dependence on agency staff
and free up the two Team Leaders to increase their commitment from 25 to 75% of their
time to supporting and mentoring their staff
Focus resources at the front end of the development management process
Improve co-ordination between applicants, consultees, the public, Members, Town and
Parish Councils and Legal Services to provide clear service pathways as follows:
o Customer interface and enquiry pathway: better web-based access to guidance and
advice for those considering a planning application,
o Pre-application pathway: More and better pre-application advice and guidance with
master planning as required
o More, better, and timely Planning Performance Agreements, for example, integrated
with ECC
o More straight forward Section 106 negotiations based on updated guidance,
standards templates to achieve consistency and streamlined process to achieve
timely completions of agreements,

Leading to:
• More planning applications considered within the 8 and13 week timetables with improved
service and place making outcomes
• Fewer appeals due to fewer call ins, overturns, and non-determination
• Rising reputation as a good LPA and performance in the Government’s KPIs
Recommendation 5: Reinvigorating the service
The service will require reinvigorated, effective leadership and direction to deliver an operational
development plan.
This will require establishing new service operating procedures and practices exemplified as service
pathways in accordance with a detailed action plan and programme.
The pathways are summarised in this report as: Customer interface and enquiry pathway (Section
7.2), Place making pathway (Section 7.6), Development Management pathway (Section 7.10), S106
Agreement pathway (Section 7.11), Enforcement pathway (Section 7.13) and Member development
management pathway (Section 6.3).

Page 74

32

The Customer Interface and Enquiry Pathway
7.2 Staff have reported the regular duty system (which is staffed by a Development Management
case officer during conventional office hours) is an ineffective use of staff resources. From
experience most planning enquires fall into three categories.
•

•

•

Routine enquiries, for example, the need for planning permission or progress with
applications. These can usually be dealt with through a user-friendly self-service website.
Where such questions become complex, customers can submit their enquiry and request an
appointment. A model set of web pages are described in Sections 7.4 – 7.5 below.
Other enquiries, these arise from customers who need to discuss details of a specific case.
These are best dealt with by through an appointment with the relevant case officers and
Place Services consultants to reduce interruptions to their case management workloads. The
appointment system to be designed to log calls, record responses dates and headline
outcomes.
Conveyancing Solicitors property search enquiries, much of the planning history data from
1947 is held on microfiche and needs to be digitalised to improve response times and save
staff time.

7.3 To inform updates to the web pages and support continuous professional development, a Local
Plan policy officer needs to be nominated to provide all staff with briefings (available from
professional bodies /press) on the planning and development management implications of new and
amendments to existing legislation.
7.4 The Council web site would need to direct planning enquiries to a dedicated web page menu of
on-line solutions to include:
• Scripts in response to frequently asked questions with links to advice and guidance
• Progress with planning applications
• Committee meeting dates, reports, and decision notices
• Submit by e mail response to consultations
• Submit by e mail details of requests for an appointment with a relevant officer
7.5 For applicants, the web pages to provide information on:
•
•
•

•
•

•

Fees: A transparent schedule of fees for pre-planning application discussions, PPAs, planning
applications, S106 legal and monitoring fees
Validation: Information and document requirements to ensure registration of planning
applications on receipt by the LPA
Process and timetable: A flow chart and description of how the Council handles planning
applications of different types with reference to the timetable, steps (for example requests
for amendments, consultation notices, conditions, reserved matters) decision making
(delegated and Committee decisions), decision notices and as required S106 agreements
How to monitor your planning application: Walk through the web / Planning Portal on how
applicants can monitor progress with their application and apply for an appointment to
discuss specific matters relating to their application
Planning obligations: The S106 Council (to be prepared) and ECC guidance documents,
relevant standards and required planning obligations for difference types of development
with reference to the relevant NPPF and emerging / adopted Local Plan policies,
Neighbourhood Plans, legislation, local evidence base and standards
S106 agreements pathway: A walk through the S106 agreement making template and
information requirements, pathway, and timetables

Page 75

33

•
•
•

Discharge of conditions and deeds of variation: A walk through requirements, processes, and
procedures.
Extensions of time: Procedure when officers request extensions of time
Complaints and appeals: Procedures for making a complaint and submitting an appeal

Key Deliverables:
•
•
•
•

To provide an enhanced customer friendly web site with FAQs and self-service capabilities
To digitalise all planning histories or provide administrative resources to ensure rapid access
to existing records
To establish an appointment system (and cease duty planner system)
To institute regular staff briefing on planning policy and processes

The Place Making Pathway
Pre-planning application stage objectives, tools, and procedures
7.6 The pre-planning stage provides the LPA with its best opportunity to secure requirements for
development sites and shape emerging development proposals. The key matters being policy
compliance, design (facades, materials, massing, layout, and orientation), access arrangements,
conditions, and planning obligations requirements for infrastructure and wider facilities.
Greater investment of time at this stage would result in better applications that can be validated on
receipt, require few if any amendments and approved within time with prompt completion of
related S106 agreements. This in turn leads to savings in time and money due to a decline in
requests for amendments, appeals (following decisions to refuse and non-determination) and
complaints from the public.
7.7 At the critical pre-planning application stage, the LPA needs the right tools and procedures to do
the job, notably structured pre-planning applications procedures including appropriate involvement
of Members and third parties.
7.8 The established priority is to prepare and progress a sound Local Plan to adoption. Key
documents of the Local Plan evidence will be the Urban Capacity and Peripheral Landscape Studies,
Transport Studies, Infrastructure Delivery Plan, Uttlesford Design Guide / Design Codes, and S106
planning obligations guidance and S106 information pack including standards.
7.9 For significant proposals, a Senior Development Manager would convene a multi-agency / multidisciplinary team liaise with local Members and representatives of the relevant Town and Parish
Council. The purposes being to provide land promoters with comprehensive pre-planning application
guidance, the Planning Performance Agreement service and S106 information pack and headline
requirements.
In the case of strategic scale and sensitive sites, the discussions with the land promoters would
include collaborations on and funding for preparing masterplans and infrastructure delivery plans. In
most cases this would require the appointment of a dedicated project manager at the promoter’s
expense.
Key Deliverables:
•

To progress emerging Local Plan in a timely manner, assemble robust evidence base
including Infrastructure Delivery Plan, objectively assessed needs, landscape and heritage

Page 76

34

•
•
•
•

studies etc along with effective community engagement and strategic infrastructure
partnerships
To prepare a Planning Obligations Policy and Guidance document including appropriate
standards
To prepare a Districtwide Design Guide (building on the Essex Design Guide)
To plan and deliver a programme of Masterplans / Design Codes for strategic sites and areas
of significant change
To refresh the protocol for positive pre-application engagement with promoters, developers,
and applicants (including sites emerging as part of the Local Plan process) and appropriate
Member involvement

Development Management Pathway
7.10 The steps along the pathway are:
•
•

Receipt of planning applications by the Support and Registration Team for acknowledgement
and either validation or requests for missing required information.
DM Team Leaders to operate a triage system to provide for a more sophisticated allocation
of staff time and support for case management. Such an approach was recommended in the
POSE Review 2018 and was suggested by a member of staff with experience of a successful
triage system. In addition to being an efficient way of working it would formalise and
routinise dedication of more management time with and support for the case officers which
include career grade staff. The key elements of the system tailored for the LPA being:

•

Allocation of applications into five categories:
o Category 1 - Straightforward and potentially acceptable, requires little or no
negotiation, fast track approval
o Category 2 – Policy compliant application may need some limited negotiation to
improve then approve
o Category 3 – Significant consideration and negotiation necessary (probably most
majors in practice) need to allocate sufficient time probably a PPA and project
management approach / regular reviews
o Category 4 – Applications which do not appear to be policy compliant but worth
limited time to investigate and negotiate to see if they can be made acceptable
otherwise refuse.
o Category 5 – Non policy compliant applications potentially seek withdrawal or
otherwise fast track refusal.

•

Post triage initiation meetings:
o Minors and others: The Team Leader and case officer to review applications, identify
and diagnose issues, provide consistent advice on possible solutions, set tasks
against a standard check list and signpost sources of help and advice
o Majors: The Major Applications Managers to convene multi-agency / multidisciplinary teams (assembled for pre-application discussions and PPAs) to review
the application, agree issues, solutions, action plan, allocation of tasks and
programme

•

Post case initiation:
o Minors and others, ad hoc discussions where more detailed consideration prompts a
need to consider alternative courses of action

Page 77

35

o

•

Majors / problematic cases, weekly meetings of multi-agency, multi-disciplinary
teams to report / review progress, address key issues and update forward
programme

Reports
o Delegated: To be drafted in accordance with a standard template for recording
information and evidence material to consideration of the application
o Committee: To be drafted with a more comprehensive template to include the
results of consultations on and as a minimum the agreed in principle heads of terms
for S106 agreement

Good practice would also include regular training and updates on emerging good practice, policy
issues and an opportunity to review implemented planning permissions with Members of the
Planning committee, possibly through six monthly tours.
Key Deliverables
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Additional experienced officer capacity to manage significant major applications
Focus DM Team Leaders on support and mentoring of teams and reduce their casework from
75% to 25% of their time
Effective triage of applications
Regular one to one and team knowledge exchange meetings
Consistent use of templates for delegated decision making
Constructive use of performance data to promote and foster continuous improvement
Officer development and joint officer / Member tours to review development outcomes

S106 Agreements Pathway
7.11 The S106 Agreements Pathway will be an integral element of the Development Management
Pathway for applications where such agreements are required. The complexities of planning for,
negotiating and securing S106 agreements is amplified by the range of stakeholders who in turn face
complexities in defining and meeting their own service obligations.
The interested parties range from the ‘big ticket’ obligations required by the Council’s Housing
Service (affordable housing), Essex County Council (highways, school places and youth facilities) and
NHS Clinical Commissioning Groups (health services) to Town and Parish Councils’ place making
items, open space, allotments, SUDS, and community facilities.
The Council as LPA is responsible for ensuring all interested parties are given equal access to the preplanning discussions and post application negotiating process. It also has responsibility for mediating
between claims on grounds of proportionality and affordability.
7.12 The practical and governance steps along pathway are:
•

To formalise roles and responsibilities of the parties concerned with framing, negotiating,
and completing S106 agreements:
o

Updated S106 planning obligations guidance note with all obligations based on NPPF
and emerging and adopted Local Plan policies and standards and Neighbourhood
Plans (with links to the relevant documents)

Page 78

36

o

S106 information pack available on the web site to include the guidance notes,
template, legal and monitoring fees and briefing on the S106 pathway

o

Protocols with the relevant parties setting out the S106 process, procedures,
entitlements, and obligations

•

Pre- application initial meeting to include S106 as a standing agenda item for high-level
discussions on requirements and briefing on the S106 agreement pathway. A key task at this
stage is for the LPA to mediate between the competing claims on grounds of proportionality
and affordability as failure to do so is a major source of delay in completing S106
agreements and issuing decision notices

•

PPAs to include S106 as a standard service offer to comprise consultations with corporate
services and third parties and detailed negotiations with the applicant. These will involve the
interested parties and concern the obligations required to make the application acceptable.
They will culminate with in principle agreement on heads of terms prior to reporting to
Planning Committee for decision making

•

Protocol with corporate and third-party consultees including Town and Parish Councils to
enable the Council to manage major planning applications within 13 weeks. This may require
an 8-week maximum period to raise realistic and justified requirements to allow for
mediation between competing claims and negotiations which may require:
o The Council’s Planning Solicitors to assist with the negotiations
o Third-party consultees adjust their governance arrangements
Planning Committee reports to include results of consultations, justifications for the full
schedule of obligations and at least the negotiated and agreed in-principle S106 obligations
as a precondition of informed decision making

•

Subject to Planning Committee (conditional) approval, case officers to submit full
instructions and completed information template to Legal Services’ in-house Planning
Solicitors to finalise the first draft S106 agreement. The Solicitors to develop and draw on a
library of bespoke clauses which can be used as and when required.

•

Legal to seek with applicants, completion of all S106 agreements within the allowed time
limit.

Key Deliverables
•
•
•

Additional in-house legal capacity, with a new framework contract for specialist legal advice and
service level agreement to define responsibilities and procedures
Planning Obligation guidance and procedures
Establish protocol for corporate and third-party consultees including Town and Parish Councils,
Essex County Council, and any other relevant infrastructure providers in terms of roles,
responsibilities, and timely responses, recognising the LPA has ultimate responsibility for
decision making

Page 79

37

The Enforcement Pathway
7.13 Effective promotion of the four pillars of enforcement - public value, prevention, intervention,
and enforcement - requires a more integrated approach between Members, Town and Parish
Councils, colleagues in Development Management and Legal Services.

Governance steps
7.14 The practical and governance steps along the enforcement pathway are:
•

Public value
o To promote greater public understanding of the roles and responsibilities, powers
and procedures of planning enforcement, environmental health, and Essex County
Council as the Highway Authority:
o Collaborate on common explanatory templates and signposting
o Promote these templates on the Council’s respective web sites, other relevant
media

•

To develop and promote training events on enforcement procedures, ethos, and limits of
powers and communications protocols with Members of the District Council and the Town
and Parish Council clerks to:
o Help manage community expectations (which often go beyond what the team has
powers to meet)
o Keep Members and the clerks informed of progress with cases of highest community
interest
o Enlist the support of these stakeholders most notably where high-profile cases
demand extensive communications with local communities and areas are subject to
large scale development over one or more sites
o Report on the team’s work, the prevention measures, the issues resolved and
explanations for difficulties with resolving outstanding / long running complaints

•

To manage the continuing resource implications of vexatious complainants, consider case
reviews with representatives of the relevant agencies chaired by an independent mediator
to recommend actions that can and cannot be taken

•

To promote greater resilience for the Enforcement Service. The elements of resilience
include: continuity in Building Control’s cross checking approved planning drawings with
completed buildings, Support and Registration’s triage and support work, Team Leader’s
case assessment and triage and backfilling vacancies and long-term leave. The latter may
require aligning recruitment with market availability. There would be merit on in assigning
career grade staff stints with the team to give them first-hand experience of the
enforcement service

•

To make the service more efficient by aligning and using automatic document templates and
printing with those provided for Development Management

•

To formalise the triage case assessment procedure to identify:
o Complaints that do not amount to enforceable breaches in law
o Enforcement ‘majors’ defined as serious and high visibility breaches
o Enforcement ‘minors’ defined as low profile breaches

Page 80

38

•

Send formal confirmation of decisions on complaints to the relevant parties, with advice and
referrals as appropriate for those cases that will not be progressed and explanation of the
next steps for new cases.

•

For new cases, hold one to one case initiation meetings to identify and diagnose issues,
provide consistent advice on possible solutions and for majors contact the relevant Town or
Parish Council to define partner roles (things to do and not do) and reporting arrangements.

Prevention
•

•

To collect, record and undertake more detailed data analyses to develop and keep up to
date intelligence on the source and types of complaints, those complaints that are not valid
and those that are by type and significance, root causes of complaints, actions taken and
possible preventative measures
To promote upstream solutions with stakeholders to design out / prevent downstream
enforcement issues, recent sources have included:
o Unnecessary and over specified planning conditions
o Poorly drafted S106 agreements by applicant’s Solicitors
o Excessive use of extensions of time which increases risk of builders starting on site in
advance of planning application decisions

Interventions
•

To negotiate pragmatic solutions to breaches of planning control. Such solutions to be
subject of regular liaison with complainants, ward Members and Town and Parish Council
clerks and monitoring for compliance with agreed actions. In the event of the pragmatic
approach failing, proceed to formal action if it is expedient in the public interest to do so.

Enforcement
•

In the last resort, enforce against breaches as appropriate through Enforcement Notices,
Stop Notices, Temporary Stop Notices, Breach of Condition Notices, Planning Contravention
Notices and Enforcement Injunctions and related monitoring.

Key Deliverables
• Promote positive engagement with Town and Parish Councils by way of training and establishing
effective ways of working which recognises the discretionary nature of the service and the
principle of taking action where it is expedient in the public interest to do
• Invest in and use the enforcement module of the planning processing system

8. Strategic Interventions and Resources
8.1 In this section the review team sets out the transformation strategy for the LPA including
resource requirements and allocations.

Page 81

39

LPA Transformation strategy
8.2 The strategic interventions are to:
• Develop the Council’s governance regime that is fit to create an outstanding planning and
place-making capability with the right capacity to create quality outcomes with and for all
the district’s communities
• Reorientate the Council as LPA from reactive planning to proactive, positive planning
activities for better place making and development outcomes with appropriate leadership
and resources.

Transformative governance
8.3 In Section 3.6 we benchmarked the Council’s governance regime for the LPA against the five
elements of governance required to power transformative change. A key pre-condition of success is
for the political leadership and senior managers to be equally committed to delivering the politically
identified priorities and governance arrangements.
The benchmarking identified gaps between best practice governance regimes and those of the
Council and those between the political leadership and senior managers.

Performance management
8.4 A Performance Management System is key element of a best practice governance regime. It
provides an essential tool for the leadership and Corporate Management Board to ensure the LPA
transformation strategy and operations plan creates and leverages the capabilities and capacities
required to deliver a fit for purpose planning authority and continuous improvement.
The performance management regime should measure performance against the Government’s
three development management Key Performance Indicators and Local Performance Indicators
designed to maximise public value from the planning system. Such value to be defined as:
•
•

facilitating better place making, infrastructure and community benefits from new
development
protecting and enhancing the built and natural environments for a net zero carbon future
and net gains in habitat.

Recommendation 6: Political Leadership and Corporate Management Board (CMB)
This recommendation is the most important of the review. To develop the capabilities and capacities
required to deliver the strategy, the political leadership (dominant regime) and the Corporate
Management Board (subordinate regime) will need to:
a) Arrive at a shared commitment to the relevant corporate priorities and
b) Align their respective governance arrangements with those required to deliver them.

The main tasks require:
• Leader, Cabinet and CMB to vest high political and corporate priority for the LPA objectives,
promote a one team culture where all Members and officers and service delivery partners

Page 82

40

share a commitment to and collective responsibility for working together to deliver these
objectives
•

Leader, Cabinet and CMB to build, promote and support cross border, multi-disciplinary
strategic infrastructure planning and delivery partnerships and through new relationships
and related networks create new possibilities for the LPA. Some of these possibilities include
networked governance with Essex County Council (in respect of master planning, education
provision and infrastructure planning, funding, and delivery), cross boundary strategic
infrastructure partnerships and developers (in positive planning initiatives such as master
planning, co-production of advance infrastructure and innovations in zero carbon
development) and rural communities (in reimagining the countryside with farming, water
management and environment interest groups).

•

CMB to direct early and rapid implementation of the operations transformation plan
proposed in this review, most notably introducing the new operating procedures
(exemplified as service pathways) supported by a senior Development Management
Transformation Manager and accelerate delivery with early and justified resource allocations

•

CMB and the Leader and Cabinet to establish a high-profile Performance Management
System to which all relevant Members and officers will be committed to and accountable
for, led by a senior performance management manager reporting to the Director with
quarterly reports to CMB and Cabinet.

In this context, the Chief Executive will need to ensure the Council has sound officer leadership in
place, the right staff resources and tools required to the deliver the transformation strategy and
action plan.

Resources
8.5 The Planning Services budget information is summarised in Appendix 2. At the time of the
review, Planning Services and Legal Services were promoting budget growth bids. The Peer Review
team endorses budget allocations to correct the imbalances in management capacities and in skills
and experience to manage complex major planning applications in Legal Services to negotiate, draft
and execute Section 106 planning obligations agreements. Further investment will be required to
put in place the recommended ‘toolkit.’
However, the required service transformation will only materialise if the above investments are
matched with a fully aligned commitment by Members and officers to deliver the strategic and
operational development plans. The key matters include leadership capacities and capabilities to
drive forward the envisaged service transformation and inculcate a culture of continuous
improvement.
The Peer Review team envisage the strategic and operational plans will yield exceptional returns in
the form of a higher performing Development Management service, better place making and
development outcomes for existing communities and new residents. The plans should create a
virtuous circle in which the LPA has the capacities and competencies to generate significant sums
from planning performance agreements and hence sustain investment back into the Development
Management service.
The ambition being to reverse the current position where applicants are questioning the value of
planning performance agreements as a worthwhile investment.

Page 83

41

8.6 The single most urgent investment is to appoint a senior, suitably experienced, manager, on a
fixed term contract, to oversee delivery of a detailed transformation plan and programme based on
the review recommendations. This should include a permanent post to ensure the proposed service
pathways and performance management systems are embedded over the medium term and
continuous transformation over the long term.
8.7 Secondly, there is an urgent need to appoint two experienced Development Management
Principal Officers to lead on the most significant major applications. Whilst leading on the processing
of their cases at pre application and application stages they should have a key role in corralling and
leading the multi-disciplinary virtual teams (inside and outside the Council) necessary for successful
place-making. Uttlesford’s environment has many special qualities and there are many challenges
including significant growth to meet the identified housing and other needs.
The impact of the resulting development possibly including whole new communities requires a proactive approach and an experienced planning team. The strengthening of the skill base in this way
would leave those in team leader posts with management capacity to mentor and oversee less
experienced staff dealing with the bulk of the ‘minor’ and ‘other’ applications which also collectively
can have a significant impact.
8.8 Key to good place-making is specialist urban design expertise, something that is also being
emphasised by the Government in their proposed changes to NPPF and associated guidance. This
has implications for the Council’s budget in two ways. First, in enhancing in house capacity as
referenced in the growth bid but also in budget allocations to produce a local design guide and
masterplans/design codes for significant schemes. The latter may be work which can be funded by
development promoters. In certain circumstances the Council may wish to be a founding and or a
co-funder, for example where a settlement is faced with separate schemes and there is a need to set
an overall strategy.
8.9 Another missing part of the ‘toolkit’ is a developers’ contribution guidance document. The
County Council and good practice LPAs have such documents to provide developers with certainty
and consistency and help maximise contributions. The Council needs to prepare a guidance
document by drawing on the Infrastructure Delivery Plan (IDP) which is being prepared for the Local
Plan. This leads to consideration of the Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL).
8.10 The Government through its White Paper has, among other things, indicated it is considering
replacing the CIL with a national levy. Whether Government decides to amend the CIL or introduce a
national levy, managing infrastructure priorities and continuing to optimise S106 Agreements will
remain a critical LPA role. The IDP baseline and implications for growth is critical not only to the
success of the emerging Local Plan but also to inform developer contributions policy and
negotiations in the interim.
The Council currently deals with S106 negotiations on a case-by-case basis through the relevant
Development Manager and enforcement through a Section 106 Monitoring Officer. This is a matter
for further consideration as other LPAs find it effective to appoint a senior S106/CIL officer. The role
involves managing the implementation of infrastructure priorities (keeping the IDP as a living
document / implementation tool to inform case officers), and liaison with infrastructure providers,
sending out invoices, checking monies due and working with enforcement officers who can check
compliance with conditions and starts on site or trigger points for S106 obligations.

Page 84

42

8.11 The above key investments are critical. Whilst the review team have not considered other
proposals in the growth bid here, some will be essential to delivering the service pathways referred
to in section 7, for example to deliver a fit for purpose self-service customer experience. These are
matters to be developed in more detail as part of the transformation action plan.
Recommendation 7 - Chief Executive and Council
The Chief Executive and CMB to advise the political leadership and opposition leaders on
investment required – in management, officers, and tools – as a pre-condition of delivering
the transformation strategy and action plan. Some requirements are highlighted in the
Budget and Growth Bid (at Appendix 2) with priorities for:
The appointment of a Development Management Transformation Manager (Fixed term
contract) and arrangements for overseeing the new proposed service pathways and
performance management systems over the longer term.
The appointment of 2 Principal Development Case Managers
Enhanced urban design capacity including the production of a local design guide and
appropriate masterplans/design codes
Enhanced legal service capacities to support Local Plan making and Development
Management most notably in negotiating and drafting (deliverable and enforceable) S106
Agreements
The production of a developers’ contribution guidance document and appointment of a
106/CIL delivery officer
The Chief Executive and CMB to advise the political leadership and opposition leaders on a
detailed action plan and programme to put in place and operate enhanced service pathways
as described above: Customer interface and enquiry pathway (Section 7.2), Place making
pathway (Section 7.6), Development Management pathway (Section 7.10), S106 Agreement
pathway (Section 7.11), Enforcement pathway (7.13) and Member development
management pathway (Section 6.3).

Leadership
8.12 To drive the strategic priorities and to deliver a fit for purpose LPA leadership will be critical.
Above we have outlined the importance of Leader, Cabinet and CMB setting the agenda. To achieve
this the role of a suitably qualified and experienced Director is essential to i) ensure that Planning
Services structure, management, resources and performance is appropriate to deliver quality
outcomes, ii) drive the transformation plan and iii) lead UDC in developing strategic partnerships.

Page 85

43

Recommendation 8 - Chief Executive
The Chief Executive should review the leadership requirements for delivering and sustaining an
improved planning service, including succession planning for the Director of Public Services in
anticipation of his retirement.
The starting points for defining the job purposes and person specification are framed by the
administration’s political priority to a be a place making LPA, the requirements for managerial
leadership and delivery of the LPA transformation strategy and action plan.
The Chief Executive should consider how best to ensure the Corporate Management Board has
appropriate and sufficient planning advice and guidance to secure corporate ownership and
direction in line with RTPI guidance.

Page 86

44

APPENDIX 1 – Recommendations and Actions
The recommendations and actions are grouped to reflect the key areas for improvement, under
three core themes
A. Recommendations and actions for council leadership
B. Recommendations to improve the Development Management process
C. Recommendations and actions for Members

A. Recommendations and actions for council leadership
Recommendation 6: Political Leadership and Corporate Management Board (CMB)
This recommendation is the most important of the review. To develop the capabilities and capacities
required to deliver the strategy, the political leadership (dominant regime) and the Corporate
Management Board (subordinate regime) will need to:
•
•

Arrive at a shared commitment to the relevant corporate priorities and
Align their respective governance arrangements with those required to deliver them.

The main actions to drive this recommendation require:
•
•
•
•

Leader, Cabinet and CMB to vest high political and corporate priority for the LPA objectives.
Promote a one team culture where all Members, officers and service delivery partners share a
commitment to and collective responsibility for working together to deliver these objectives
Leader, Cabinet and CMB to build, promote and support cross border, multi-disciplinary strategic
infrastructure planning and delivery partnerships and through new relationships and related
networks create new possibilities for the LPA.
Some of these possibilities include:
o
o

o

•

•

•

Networked governance with Essex County Council (in respect of master planning,
education provision and infrastructure planning, funding, and delivery)
Cross boundary strategic infrastructure partnerships and developers (in positive
planning initiatives such as master planning co-production of advance infrastructure and
innovations in zero carbon development)
Rural communities (in reimagining the countryside with farming, water management
and environment interest groups).

CMB to direct early and rapid implementation of the operations transformation plan proposed in
this review, most notably introducing the new operating procedures (exemplified as service
pathways), supported by a senior Development Management Transformation Manager, and
accelerate delivery with early and justified resource allocations.
CMB and the Leader and Cabinet to establish a high-profile Performance Management System to
which all relevant Members and officers will be committed to and accountable for, led by a
senior performance management manager reporting to the Director with quarterly reports to
CMB and Cabinet.
In this context, the Chief Executive will need to ensure the Council has sound officer leadership
in place, with the right staff resources and tools required to the deliver the transformation
strategy and action plan.

Page 87

45

Recommendation 7 - Chief Executive and Council
The Chief Executive and CMB to advise the political leadership and opposition leaders on investment
required – in management, officers, and tools – as a pre-condition of delivering the transformation
strategy and action plan. Some requirements are highlighted in the Officer Growth Bid for 2021-22 &
Approved Budget for 2021-22 (Appendix 2) with priorities for:
•

•
•
•
•

The appointment of a Development Management Transformation Manager (Fixed term
contract) and arrangements for overseeing the new proposed service pathways and
performance management systems over the longer term.
The appointment of two Principal Development Case Managers
Enhanced urban design capacity including the production of a local design guide and appropriate
masterplans/design codes
Enhanced legal service capacities to support Local Plan making and Development Management
most notably in negotiating and drafting (deliverable and enforceable) S106 Agreements
The production of a developers’ contribution guidance document and appointment of a 106/CIL
delivery officer

The Chief Executive and CMB to advise the political leadership and opposition leaders on a detailed
action plan and programme to put in place and operate enhanced service pathways as described
above:
•
•
•
•
•
•

Customer interface and enquiry pathway (Section 7.2)
Place making pathway (Section 7.6)
Development Management pathway (Section 7.10)
S106 Agreement pathway (Section 7.11)
Enforcement pathway (7.13)
Member development management pathway (Section 6.3).

Recommendation 8 - Chief Executive
The Chief Executive should review the leadership requirements for delivering and sustaining an
improved planning service, including succession planning for the Director of Public Services in
anticipation of his retirement.
The starting points for defining the job purposes and person specification are framed by the
administration’s political priority to a be a place making LPA, the requirements for managerial
leadership and delivery of the LPA transformation strategy and action plan.
The Chief Executive should consider how best to ensure the Corporate Management Board has
appropriate and sufficient planning advice and guidance to secure corporate ownership and
direction in line with RTPI guidance.

Page 88

46

B.

Recommendation to improve the Development Management process

Recommendation 5 – Reinvigorating the Service
The service will require reinvigorated, effective leadership and direction to deliver an operational
development plan.
This will require establishing new service operating procedures and practices exemplified as service
pathways in accordance with a detailed action plan and programme. Key deliverables for the service
pathways are shown below.
The pathways are summarised as:
•
•
•
•
•
•

Customer interface and enquiry pathway (Section 7.2)
Place making pathway (Section 7.6)
Development Management pathway (Section 7.10)
S106 Agreement pathway (Section 7.11)
Enforcement pathway (Section 7.13)
Member development management pathway (Section 6.3).

Operational service outputs to include:
•
•
•
•

Timely ‘right first time’ registration of planning applications
Timely consideration of planning applications within the 8- and 13-week Government
determined time limits or agreed extensions of time
Declining allocation of scarce resources at the back end of the development management
service on fewer appeals due to fewer call ins, overturns, and non-determination of applications
Rising reputation as a good LPA with continuous improvement against the Government’s KPIs
and local PIs

The Customer Interface and Enquiry Pathway
Key Deliverables:
• To provide an enhanced customer friendly web site with FAQs and self-service capabilities
• To digitalise all planning histories or provide administrative resources to ensure rapid access
to existing records
• To establish an appointment system (and cease duty planner system)
• To institute regular staff briefings on planning policy and processes
The Place Making Pathway
Key Deliverables:
•

•

To progress emerging Local Plan in a timely manner, assemble robust evidence base
including Infrastructure Delivery Plan, objectively assessed needs, landscape and heritage
studies etc along with effective community engagement and strategic infrastructure
partnerships
To prepare a Planning Obligations Policy and Guidance document including appropriate
standards

Page 89

47

•
•
•

To prepare a Districtwide Design Guide (building on the Essex Design Guide)
To plan and deliver a programme of Masterplans / Design Codes for strategic sites and areas
of significant change
To refresh the protocol for positive pre-application engagement with promoters, developers,
and applicants (including sites emerging as part of the Local Plan process) with appropriate
Member involvement.

Development Management Pathway
Key Deliverables
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

To reduce the LPA’s dependence on agency staff by recruiting two senior development case
managers with experience in place making and assembling and leading multi-disciplinary and
multi-agency teams to handle significant major planning applications
To focus Development Management Team Leaders on support and mentoring of teams and
reduce their casework from 75% to 25% of their time
To put in place and operate an effective triage of applications
To provide and record regular one to one and team knowledge exchange meetings
To put in place and make consistent use of templates for delegated decision making
To make constructive use of performance data to promote and foster continuous
improvement
To plan and conduct joint officer / Member tours to review lessons and best practice from
development outcomes

Section 106 Pathway
Key Deliverables
• To put in place additional in-house legal capacity, with a new framework contract for
specialist legal advice and service level agreement to define responsibilities and procedures
• To apply the proposed planning obligations guidance document and procedures
• To establish a protocol for corporate and third-party consultees including Town and Parish
Councils, Essex County Council, and any other relevant infrastructure providers in terms of
roles, responsibilities, and timely responses, recognising the LPA has ultimate responsibility
for decision making
Enforcement Pathway
Key Deliverables
• To promote positive engagement with Town and Parish Councils through training and
establishing effective ways of working which recognises the discretionary nature of the
service and the principle of acting when it is expedient in the public interest to do so
• Invest in and use the enforcement module of the planning processing system

Page 90

48

C.

Recommendations for actions by Members

Roles and Responsibilities of Members in Improving the Development Management
System
The new context calls for all Members to fulfil their LPA responsibilities.
This applies to all Members who have multiple roles in the work of the LPA.
•
•
•
•

The collective community leadership role in establishing a vision and strategic objectives for
the LPA, representing, and championing the LPA in community, partnerships, and other
third-party contexts.
In budget making roles, making decisions on relevant budgets and wider resources.
In plan making as members of the Local Plan Leadership Group and Scrutiny and as ward
members who input to and comment on planning applications.
Those Members who exercise the Development Management functions of the Council, as
the Local Planning Authority, have specific responsibilities to act in the interests of the whole
community and make transparent justifiable decisions based on national planning policy, the
development plan and other relevant material planning considerations.

To assist Members in fulfilling their respective roles as members of the LPA, the following
recommendations are made.
These include the provision of practical support (tools, protocols and training) to foster positive
Member / officer relationships and equipping Members to engage in appropriate pre-application
discussions to fulfil best practice roles in plan making, Development Management and scrutiny of
the LPA.
However it is the consistent and effective discharge of member roles and behaviours, supported by
the application of appropriate tools and training, that will ensure Members play their critical part
in improving the efficiency, effectiveness and impact of the Development Management system.

Recommendation 1 - All Councillors and Members of the Planning Committee
•

All Member training to build an understanding of the mutual benefits of good Member and
officer relationships and the Code of Conduct

•

Before sitting on the Planning Committee, Members need to undertake mandatory training on
planning matters and attend annual refresher courses. Members need to be encouraged to
read the National Planning Policy Framework and observe a nationally recognised best practice
LPA Planning Committee at work.

Recommendation 2 - All Councillors
•

To ensure the Council has a best practice Development Management Delegation Scheme and
protocol for Member involvement in pre-application processes (see sections 6.14 – 6.17 above).

Page 91

49

•

To ensure all Members receive training in the to be updated delegation scheme, and preapplication processes

Recommendation 3 - All Councillors
•

To update the call-in protocol to include a gateway process based on material planning
considerations to ensure the Planning Committee’s time is used effectively (see sections 6.18 –
6.20)

•

To ensure all Members receive training in the updated call-in process

Recommendation 4 - Members of the Planning Committee
•

To review Planning Committee procedures, timing, and practices (see Sections 6.21 – 6.28)

Page 92

50

APPENDIX 2 – Officer Growth Bid for 2021-22 & Approved Budget for 2021-22
Budget and Growth Bid
A2.1 The Council budget for 2021/22 for the Planning Service comprises four lines, each the
outcome of a complex local government accounting protocols and procedures.
Planning Service Budget for 2020/21 and 2021/22

Planning Management
Planning Policy
Planning Specialists
Funds for additional resources to support the Local Plan

2020/21
£ 410k
£ 912k
£ 219k
£1,541k

2021/22
£ 422k
£1,660k*
£ 210k
£ 240k**
£2,532k

* Includes £640k from ‘Use of Reserves’ under the heading ‘Sustainable Communities to support
specialist consultancy and additional fees relating to the Local Plan.’
** Corporate Management Funds for additional resources to support the Local Plan
A2.2 The Development Management service is funded through planning application fees. Additional
income in 2020/21 of £341k arose mostly from a carry forward of £68k, staff savings of £48.5k, a
discretionary right to add 20% to standard planning application fees (£194k) and higher than
forecast income from Planning Performance Agreements (£25k).
A2,3 Of these monies £85k will be carried forward and £256k were allocated as follows:
- £113k Locum Team Leader
- £58k Career Grade posts
- £55k for the Place Service contract (six months)
- £25k Environment Services Officer (0.5fte)
- £5k for local heritage
A2.4. The Council’s response times to paid for pre-planning application advice are wholly
unacceptable, promoters who have paid for PPAs are complaining they see no benefit from the fees
they have paid. Th alternative approach open to developers is to make appeals against nondetermination of planning applications. In this scenario, income that should be enabling positive
planning would be lost, the costs of reacting to appeals would mount and some S106 obligations
would be lost due to developer unilateral undertakings.
A2.5 The Service Growth Bid for 2020/21 requested the following:
Description (Grade) + (SCP at 04/21)

Cost

2 No. Senior/ Principal Planning officer (8/9/10)
+ (32 - 40)
2 No. Programme Project officers (5) + (18)

£95 - £117k

CTF then PPA

£66k

1 No. Enforcement Officer (6) + (24)
IDOX improvements
1 No. Urban Designer (9) + (36)

£38k

20% fee income
80% CTF then PPA
CTF

£53k

Page 93

Cost one
off

£10k

Funding source

MTFS to 03/24
51

1 No. admin. To input S106 agreement to
monitoring system (4) + (12)
1 GIS Apprentice
Heritage Strategy and Bespoke Article 4s (Local
Listings and Historic Gardens review)
1.5 No. Dedicated Planning Lawyers (report to
Legal Service) (8/9) and (32/36)
0.5 fte current post would round up to a No 2
fte
S106 Aviation Monitoring Officer (8/9) + (36)
0.5 fte Admin for S106 Aviation Monitoring
Officer (4) + (12)
Highways officer (to be shared with and based
in Chelmsford)

£14k
£20k
£40k
£80k

CTF / part PPA /
part cost recovery
from S106 legal
fees
Subject to appeal
outcome
Subject to appeal
outcome
PPA in ECC
partnership

£60k
£15k
£30k (TBC)
£479k

CTF
CTF

£64k

A2.6 The Council’s budget for 2021/22 allocated growth budgets of £240k for the Planning Service
and £179k for Legal Services. The latter was mostly funded from savings arising from restructuring.
In this section we note the existing commitments and the priorities for these allocations:
Commitment: To provide capabilities and capacities to meet Government requirements for better
design and digital plans and Council’s requirements for better place making
Description (Grade) + (SCP at 04/21)

Cost

1 No. Urban Designer (9) + (36)
1 GIS Apprentice
Cost to Planning Service Growth Budget

£53k
£20k
£20k

Cost one
off

Funding source
MTFS to 03/24
CTF

Priorities: To provide capabilities and capacities to assemble and co-ordinate multi-disciplinary,
multi-agency teams and Member engagement in pre-planning application discussions and delivery
an effective Planning Performance Agreement service required to elicit better major planning
applications and S106 agreements and hence development outcomes
Description (Grade) + (SCP at 04/21)

Cost

Cost one
off

Funding source

2 No. Senior/ Principal Planning officer
(8/9/10) + (32 - 40)
1 No. Programme Project officer (5) + (18)

£117k

CTF

£33k

2.5 No. Dedicated Planning Lawyers (report to
Legal Service) (8/9) and (32/36)

£180k

Highways officer (to be shared with and based
in Chelmsford)
Cost to Planning Service Growth Budget

£30k (TBC)

20% fee income
80% CTF
£144k from Legal
Service Growth
budget
£36k from S106
legal fees
PPA in ECC
partnership

£143.40k

Page 94

52

Priority: To provide capabilities and capacities to drive delivery of the transformation strategy and
operations plan. The transformation manage role being to act as project manager of the
Performance Management System and delivery of the six pathways for service procedures and
practices.
Description (Grade) + (SCP at 04/21)

Cost

1 No. Senior Transformation and Performance
manager (8/9/10) + (32 - 40)
Cost to Planning Service Growth Budget

£58.5k

Cost one
off

Funding source
CTF

£58.5k

Priority: To reduce time spent by the Enforcement Team on administrative tasks and provide
inputs to the Local Plan evidence base and emerging policy framework for Development
Management
Description (Grade) + (SCP at 04/21)

Cost

Enforcement Service IDOX improvements
Heritage Strategy and Bespoke Article 4s
(Local Listings and Historic Gardens review)
TOTAL COST TO PLANNING SERVICE BUDGET

£221,900

Cost one
off
£10k
£40k

Funding source
CTF
CTF

£50k

Low priority: The remaining – unfunded - parts of the Growth Bid amount to funding pressures of
between £64.4k to £139.4k subject to the Stansted Airport appeal outcome. The recommendations
are:
i) 1 No. (PPA) Programme Project Officer, revisit once impacts are known of new service pathways
with the No.2 Development Managers (Majors) and No1 PPA Programme Project Officer
ii) 1 No Enforcement Officer, revisit once impacts are known of new service pathways
iii) Inputs to S106 agreements to monitoring system can be undertaken in house
iv) 1 No Aviation Monitoring Officer and 0.5 No. administrative officer, revisit once the Stansted
Airport appeal has been determined
Description (Grade) + (SCP at 04/21)

Cost

1 No. Programme Project officers (5) + (18)

£33k

1 No. Enforcement Officer (6) + (24)

£38k

1 No. admin. To input S106 agreements to
monitoring system (4) + (12)
S106 Aviation Monitoring Officer (8/9) + (36)
0.5 fte Admin for S106 Aviation Monitoring
Officer (4) + (12)
Cost to Planning Service Growth Budget

Cost one
off

Funding source
20% fee income
80% CTF
CTF

£14k
£60k

Subject to appeal
outcome
Subject to appeal
outcome

£15k
£64.4k

Page 95

£14k

53

